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Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, My 2, 2017

9:36 a.m

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Good norni ng, everyone.

Are we ready to get started?

MR. LeVEE: We are. | have one housekeepi ng
matter.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Yes, of course.

MR. LeVEE: Yesterday the parties gave you their
respective list of issues. And | had realized that our
list was the intent at a conbined |ist which had fail ed.
And so overnight, we sinply corrected the list. So this
will be ICANN s version of the issues so identified.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Have you shown this to
counsel for Amazon?

MR. LeVEE: No, | did not.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: But you are now.

MR. LeVEE: |It's not nuch of a change from what
we -- ck end)

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: |s the only change the del etion
of No. 87

MR. LeVEE: Well, we del eted what was previously
No. 2.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | see.

MR. LeVEE: There's a couple of word tinkers.
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ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: So should we mark this as

Heari ng Exhibit 3? The prior one, do you want to
replace it?

MR. LeVEE: Sure. We can mark it as 3 since the
previous one is --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  All right. So it will be
mar ked as Hearing Exhibit 3. 1t's ICANN' s list of
i ssues.

(Hearing Exhibit 3 marked for

i dentification.)

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Counsel, are you ready to
proceed?

MR. THORNE: We are, Your Honor.

OPENI NG ARGUMENT

BY MR. THORNE

We've al so put together a group of slides as a

way of hel ping to organi ze what we hope to get t

hr ough.

If | can approach, 1'lIl give you a hard copy. W're

going to show them on the screen, too, but the hard copy

is probably easier to work on.
So et nme start by thanking the panel for
extraordinary attention to the case. Thanks to

opponents for hosting us again.

t he

our

| thought that yesterday's testinony from
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M. Atallah was helpful. On the very first slide, we
pi cked out -- this is based on the rough transcript that
we received late last night -- what | thought was an
i nportant starting point for our side.
(As read):
“"Did the NGPC nake an i ndependent

inquiry as to whether or not there was a

valid public interest rationale for the

GAC advice in this matter.

"Answer: No, it did not."

MR. THORNE: That was your question, Judge
Bonner. We will get the hearing transcript cleaned up.
Qur fault for talking too fast and nanes being hard to
spell. But once we have a clean transcript, we will get
that to the panel.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: When woul d you expect that,
by the way? | guess that's the court reporter's -- as
to that.

THE REPORTER: Two weeks is the normal
t ur nar ound.

MR. THORNE: |Is that acceptable, Your Honor?

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think it m ght be. It
depends -- if the parties want a reasonably expeditious
decision, it would be hel pful to have that sooner than

two weeks, | think.
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MR. THORNE: Can we --
THE REPORTER: Sur e.
MR. THORNE: We'd i ke to do that.

THE REPORTER: Like a week? Wuld you like a

week?

MR. THORNE: Can you do it sooner?

THE REPORTER: Sure. Yeah.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: M d next week | think would
be great.

MR. THORNE: We will do that, Your Honor.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Well, no, we're in early this
week, | guess. Maybe by Monday or sonething |like that,
actually, if not the end of this week.

THE REPORTER: Monday woul d be better.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: All right.

MR. THORNE: The parties will do their part to

get a transcript to you by Monday.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And will it be e-mailed? |If
so, we can print it out. |If you can deliver it by hard
copy, that would be great, also. It's up to you.

MR. THORNE: We'll do both, and we'll include

your assistant, Judge Matz.
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Thank you.
Proceed, M. Thorne.

MR. THORNE: So starting point is the NGPC did
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not nmake an i ndependent inquiry. The next slide is the
Leni n question, what's to be done?

The role of the panel is to hold I CANN
account abl e for operating consistent with its byl aws.
And al so, the articles, the articles of incorporation,
with due regard to the core values that are identified
in the byl aws.

We briefed this extensively, so I"mnot going to
argue about the role. But |I do want to point out one
thing that was litigated in prior IRP decisions, which
we'll see in some of the precedents, and that was, is
your review limted to the three questions at the bottom
of the slide?

| CANN used to take the position that you were
pi geonhol ed and was there a conflict of interest? Did
t he board exercise due diligence and care in having a
reasonabl e anount of facts in front of it? Did the
board exercise i ndependent judgnent in taking a decision
believed to be in the best interest of I CANN. They used
to say, we're going to divide this up, and if you don't
fit one, two, or three, we wn.

The precedents recently, for exanple, Corn Lake
(phonetic) discussed in our briefs, say that that's part
of the inquiry, but that's -- and it's good focus and |

t hink we went under just those questions.
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But the nore general question is has | CANN been
accountable to the community by conmplying with its
articles and byl aws.

So that's the general --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And what is the precedent that
you say provides that characterization of our
responsibility?

MR. THORNE: There are several. The Corn Lake
cite, I think it's page 30 of our prehearing brief, as
an exanpl e.

Let ne turn to the next slide and what our core
argunent is.

There are two | evels of operation in this schene.
There is the GAC, and there's the NGPC. The
Governnental Advisory Conmttee is there to give advice
on laws, international agreenents, public policy
issues -- that's what the byl aws says the GAC does.

It's not a decision-maker. If you recall in the
prehearing brief that we filed I stuck in and | thought
it was the right place in the brief two pages of the key

provi sions of the articles, bylaws, and guidelines that

woul d be useful. And in |ooking back through that, I
think I mssed one. If | could hand it, this is not an
exhibit. This is just -- these are excerpts of --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Byl aws?
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MR. THORNE: -- key provisions of the articles,
byl aws, and the gui debook.

It is the same -- same as what was in our
prehearing brief with the exception that | had omtted
and it's now on the top of the second page byl aws
Article XlI, Section 1, which says (as read):

"The advi sory conmm ttees,

generally including the GAC, shall have

no legal authority to act for | CANN. "

And that was a point that the DCA Trust panel
found inportant, that if you have a schene or the GAC
makes a decision, they take a vote, and that's ratified
by the NGPC wi thout any investigation by the NGPC,
that's i nproper under that byl aws provision.

Again, I'"'mon a structural point, that the GAC
advisors and the NGPC is the decision-mker. And the
precedents are clear that the NGPC is required to issue
a reasoned judgnent of all of the bylaws provisions
governing the NGPC, including a duty to supervise the
integrity of the entire process such as its constituent
bodi es. Sone of the bylaws provisions we've talked
about before and they're elaborated in the briefs apply
to the GAC directly, but the key structural difference
I s GAC advi ses; NGPC deci des.

And what happened here -- and, Judge Bonner, you
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mentioned this yesterday -- in an aside with
M. Atallah, you said it was interesting that the way
it's set up in this case, the GAC doesn't need to give a
reason or didn't give a reason, and the NGPC could just
approve that. But if the NGPC decided not to follow the
GAC advi ce, woul d have to give a reason

So the only burden of giving a rationale was if
the NGPC failed to accept the GAC advice. But the
advice itself was unreasoned, and its acceptance would
be unreasoned, too. That's not what the process is
that's accounted for here. That's the key structural
probl em

So next slide.

It's clear fromprecedents |ike DCA Trust, the
GAC nust give reasons. |It's clear from precedents |ike
GCC - -

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  You m ght want to cite where
that is in the DC Trust case. \What page would we find a
hol di ng, in essence, that the GAC nust give reasons for
its consensus advice?

MR. THORNE: We'll have that in just a nmonent,

Your Honor.

And then the same question, | assune, applies to
the holding in GCC, that -- this is a quote fromthe
decision. 1'll get you the cite (as read):
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"That | CANN bodi es, including and

especially NGPC, but also other bodies."

And then it comes out of the bylaws. [|f you nake
a decision or a recomendation, you have to give a
reasoned expl anation for that.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: So where is that in the
byl aws?

| don't want to bog you down, M. Thorne, but ny
col | eague here suggested and | think it would make sense
that in your slides you cite DC Trust and that sort of
thing. Actually give us the page citations and that

sort of thing --

MR. THORNE: | will do that, Your Honor.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: -- for your cites here so
we' Il have them because |I'm not altogether sure DCA
Trust stands for that, but I know we'll hear from

M. LeVee on that.

But that's a threshold question; that is, is the
GAC, when it gives consensus advice, is it required
under the articles, bylaws, or guidebook or case
precedent to state its reason or reasons or the
rationale for its advice. And you're asserting it does,

so that's an issue in the case if we need to decide.

If there actually is -- | don't see anything in
the bylaws that require that, I'Il just tell you right
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now, sSo you better cite the bylawto ne. | don't see
anything in the articles that require that. [|'m not
flyspeck the DCA Trust case, and if it does say that, in
which case it would be at | east potentially persuasive
precedent on that issue.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: May | ask a different question?
And it's one that | think it would be incunbent on
M. LeVee to address also, and that is, we understand,
think -- well, 1'lIl speak for nyself -- that prior pane
rulings constitute precedents. But if there are
i nconsi stencies or different precedents that are not
entirely in sync, do you have any recomendati on or any
authority for how we should go about choosi ng which
prior panel ?

So I'm asking you that question now in the hope
that it will guide you in your comments, because you're
citing, and understandably, prior IRP panels. |If
there's conflicting authority or different authority,
pl ease gi ve us gui dance on how we shoul d pick and choose
or resolve the conflicts.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Same question to M. LeVee,

t oo, by the way.

ARB|I TRATOR MATZ: Yes, that's what | said.

MR. THORNE: | think that's a straightforward
question. If I were in your position, | would pick the
Page 259

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




© 00 N oo o0 b~ wWw N P

N N N N NN P P P P P P PP PR
o A W N B O © 00 N O U b~ wWw N +—» O

nore persuasive precedent if you find a conflict. |
actually don't see a conflict. W'I|l get the cite in a
second, the DCA Trust. | don't see a conflict between
its holding and --

MS. BEYNON: Judge Bonner, in response to your
guestion of where DCA Trust spoke about giving reasons,
i f you | ook at paragraph 74 of that decision, it's the
panel there wote (as read):

"Accountability requires an

organi zation to explain or give reasons

for its activities, to accept

responsibility for them and to disclose

the results in a transparent manner."

And that sane proposition is also referred to in
DCA Trust, in addition to paragraph 74, paragraphs 102,
109, and 113.

In addition, if you take a | ook at the GCC
deci sion, paragraph 76 also refers to the requirenment
t hat the NGPC provide a reasoned anal ysis.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay. So let's -- | just
heard the precedent. And it may well be that that
applies to the board and the NGEC -- | got that wong
again, didn't I? Let's say it does. It doesn't
necessarily nean it applies to the GAC

But you're arguing that, essentially. And |
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understand the argunent; | just want to know what the
authority for it is. You' re arguing that the generality
of that principle should apply to the GAC.

MR. THORNE: No, no, Your Honor. It's actually
nmore specific than that.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Is it the case that DCA
Trust applies to the GAC and GCC applies to the NGPC?

MR. THORNE: GCC applies to all (unintelligible)
entities; and DCA Trust, like this case, applies to the
NGPC s mechani cal adoption of GAC advice, but it
criticizes the GAC s inability to give a rationale.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: | may have m sheard this
one. Counsel gave us the cite, 74, 102, 109, 113 on DCA
Trust. It sounded |like that applied to the GAC. They
wer e di scussing the GAC, whereas -- and | may have
m sheard. Wth GCC, it sounded |ike that coment
applied to the board, but I could be wong on that.
That's why | was asking.

MR. THORNE: GCC held that as to the board.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Ri ght .

MR. THORNE: And DCA Trust held that as to the
GAC, as wel .

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Okay. That's why | was
asking if there was a difference between those two

cites.
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MR. THORNE: Let's walk through the byl aws that
give -- we'll talk about the GAC s duties to provide a
rationale. That probably is a helpful way to walk this
t hr ough.

Basically Articles I, IIl, Ill, and IV all support
the DCA Trust holding that the GAC nust give a
rational e.

So | ooking at the cheat sheet that | passed out,
there's an Article | requirenment to strike a defensible
bal ance between conpeting core val ues.

You can't create a defensible balance w thout an
expl anation or conducting sonething |ike a reasoned
deci si on-maki ng process. And that's the -- one of the
bases the DCA Trust relies upon.

Now, Article I, if you look at its prelude, it
tal ks about actions of a GAC

|"msorry, actions of ICANN. And so there's a
further leap that the GAC is an | CANN body maki ng a
deci sion or a reconmendati on.

Article Il prohibits singling out a party for
di sparate treatnent without justification. And we
heard, for exanple, yesterday from M. Atallah that it's
a rare event for the GAC to single out an application
for advice. Singling out requires justification. It

should be justification offered by the entity that is
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doi ng the singling out.

Article I'll applies directly to the GAC by its
terns.

(As read):

"I CANN and its constituent bodies

shal | operate to the maxi num extent

feasible in an open and transparent

manner and consi stent with procedures

designed to ensure fairness."”

And Article IV, which DCA Trust relied upon,
Article IV defined accountability as (as read):

"Requi ring an organi zation to

explain or give reasons for its

activities and to accept responsibility

for them Disclose the results in a

transparent manner."

And that was applied by DCA Trust to the GAC.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: So the thought woul d be that
if you took all or some of these articles, the necessary
inplication of themis that they require a reasoned
action by | CANN.

MR. THORNE: In order for the NGPC to be able to
use the advice, they need nore than a vote. All they
got here was the fact of consensus. The NGPC rationale

says we | acked the benefit of -- it would have been a
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benefit to be getting advice that identified a public
interest that was -- or a national guard (verbatimnm,
international treaty that was at risk

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: No question it's desirable.
It would be desirable for any review ng body of the
board of I CANN and the NGPC woul d be desirable to have a
statenent of rationale or reasons.

But | think I understand, and | think maybe we']l
just need to take a look at the case -- we'll hear from
M. LeVee on what these cases stand for, the precedent,
if there's any conflicting precedent.

And then we will take a | ook at whether or not
there actually is -- whether we can conclude that there
is an obligation on the part of GAC when it's givVving
consensus advice to state a reason or reasons or
rationale for its advice.

That's your argunent, if you're correct, by the
way, you win --

MR. THORNE: That's right.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: M. Thorne, along those

lines -- I"msorry --
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: -- on Issue No. 1, | guess.
Go ahead.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Sorry about that, Your

Honor .
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So | don't have the DCA Trust case in front of
me. | knowit's been cited in the briefs.

Can you just -- we went through the bylaws. Can
you just read us the relevant paragraphs that support
the position that the GAC has to give a reason to work.

MR. THORNE: | actually have extra copies of DCA
Trust if that would be hel pful to the panel.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN:  Sure.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Again, | don't want to get
totally bogged down here because you have a finite
amount of tinme to make --

MR. THORNE: Your Honor, this is a potentially
Wi nning point. W should do it carefully.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: It is. [It's potentially
di spositive.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: M. Thorne, | don't want to
di ssuade you fromtelling -- wal king us through what you
just handed out, but please keep in mnd | have a
guestion about the |ast substantive coment you made
concerning the absence of the rationale to which the
NGPC al | uded.

So | don't want to disrupt your presentation. |
can ask it now or you can continue with this.

MR. THORNE: Thank you Your Honor.

So let's start this is on page 22, if you | ook at
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t he bottom page nunbers, but it's paragraph 74 of the
deci si on.

(As read):

"As previously decided by this

panel, there have been sone prior

orders. Such accountability" --

This is referring to the accountability
obligations of Article IV, Section 3 of the bylaws and
paragraph 4 of the byl aws.

(As read):

"Such accountability requires an

organi zation to explain or give reasons

for its activities, accept

responsibility for them and to disclose

the results in a transparent manner."

If you are going to hold anyone here accountabl e
for the decision that had sonme reasons that were better
t han opposi ng reasons, you've -- got to either hold the
GAC or the board, which has accepted the GAC s advi ce,
accountable. And DCA Trust is focused in this paragraph
on hol ding the GAC accountable for failing to reason.

Take a | ook at paragraph 102, which is on
page 43. This is reciting DCA Trust's argument the GAC
was bound to transparency and fairness to operate at the

maxi mum extent feasible in a transparent manner. That's
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Article Il'l, which applies specifically to all the
constituent bodies, including the GAC

And then it goes onto explain that | CANN s
wi tness, Ms. Heather Dryden -- I'd like to talk nore
about her in a bit, but Ms. Heather Dryden acknow edged
t hat GAC had not done that.

Par agraph 109. And this is the -- one of the
cul m nating paragraphs of the panel's decision. Having
descri bed what the GAC did in .africa. This is the sane
chair, basically the sane decision-nmaki ng body at the
same tinme as Amazon

VWhat had been descri bed above conbined with the
fact that DCA Trust was never given any notice or an
opportunity in Beijing or elsewhere to make its position
known or defend its own interest before the GAC reached
consensus and then that the board of I CANN did not take
any steps to address this issue leads this panel to
concl ude that both the actions and inactions of the
board with respect to the application for .africa were
not procedures designed to ensure fairness under Article
11, Section 1, and therefore, inconsistent with the
articles and byl aws.

So in this case, just to conpare it for a second,
M. LeVee said, Well, if Peru made a mi stake in the

Dur ban neeti ng, advocating that the nanme is on the
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list --

that's a m st ake,

yesterday for

the first time | CANN concedes

Amazon had a chance to try to address

that with the NGPC.

Well, you go to the NGPC and tell themthat we

saw Peru making a m stake. There's a transcript for the

first time in Durban. But Durban did not allow Amazon
to present correctives or to appear -- if the Durban GAC
was the actual decision or where the decision got made,

we were not allowed to make the presentation there.

That was requested in M.
paragraph 37. M.

bef ore the GAC neeti ngs,

Hayden' s testi nony,

Hayden descri bes how t hey asked

Coul d Amazon make a

Coul d we even hand out

mat eri al s

presentation, please?

so the GAC can see, for

And t hat was deni ed.
ARBI TRATOR BONNER

in the declarati on of M.

exanpl e,

t hat

VWhere is that found?

Hayden?

Peru was wrong?

| s that

MR, THORNE

M. Hayden's witten statenent,
par agraph 37 describes that Amazon asked for an
opportunity to distribute the materials and that was
deni ed.

The rules of the GAC don't allow non- GAC nenbers
And unti |

to address the body. t he Durban neeti ng,

nobody actually knew what happened. So yesterday

M. Atallah told you he didn't know what happened to
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Beijing because it was secret.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: But they changed that, right?
That's a different fact from our case --

MR. THORNE: Correct.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  -- because in our case, the
hearing -- or the proceeding of the GAC actual ly was
open, recorded, and apparently open to havi ng people
present at it, correct?

MR. THORNE: That is not correct, Your Honor.

After the fact, a transcript was avail abl e of
what had occurred there, but there was no participation
fromthe public.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Yeah, | know there was --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: WAs there attendance?

MR. THORNE: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Was that participation?

MR. THORNE: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: See, there are two issues
here. One is a transparency issue under the byl aws,
right? So a lack of -- if GAC is subject to the
transparency requirenment, you can't have secret neetings
debati ng whether or not to give the consensus advice.

So that was, | think, true in the DCA Trust case
but not true here, but |I want you to disabuse nme if I'm

wrong on that.
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Then there's a second issue, and that's
procedural fairness with respect to how GAC does t hings.
And that doesn't matter whether they are transparent or
not, but procedural fairness would be do the bylaws and
t he case precedent, do they create a duty on GAC
basically to allow the applicant in this case, the
entity whose ox is being gored, to distribute materials
and/or to make a statenment to the GAC? That has to do
wi th procedural fairness.

And | don't know the answers to these things, but
they are, | think, discrete issues. So |I'mjust trying
to clarify. You don't seemto have a transparency
argunent here because it appears that the Durban neeting
of the GAC was open, people could attend it that weren't
necessarily governnent representatives and that sort of
thing. But | don't know. |I'm asking you factually,
what does the record show factually on that issue?

MR. THORNE: | now understand that observers were
permtted in Durban. So the transparency issue you
descri bed, there were observers there. There is a
transcript.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: And there was a transcri pt
t hat was prepared that nmade avail able to any interested
party, not just governnental entities, that would be

interested in seeing the transcript; is that correct? |
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ask that as a question.

MS. ROSETTE: It is correct that the GAC session
i n Durban, during which the GAC reached consensus advice
on the .amazon applications, was open to anyone who was
at the I CANN neeting to attend.

However, it is inmportant to note that the Durban
di scussion of the .amazon applications was cunul ati ve,
pi cking up fromwhere the GAC left off in Beijing, and
t hat di scussion was conpletely closed and without a
transcript.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | understand t hat
di stinction.

MR. THORNE: That was ny col |l eague, Ms. Kristina
Rosette.

So to conme back to procedural fairness, it was
the same in both Beijing and Durban. There was no
opportunity for Amazon to make its position known or
defend -- defend its interests.

Bylaws -- this is the bottomof the first page of
the excerpts. Bylaws Article Il1l, Section 1, |1 CANN and
its constituent bodies.

Yesterday M. Atallah agreed the GACis a

constituent body. In the DCA Trust case, M. LeVee was

gquestioned by the panel, "lIs the GAC a constituent

body?" He answered, "Yes." DCA Trust panel accepting
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| CANN' s concession there agreed the GAC is a constituent
body.

Constituent bodies have to operate with
procedures designed to ensure fairness. And it would be
fundanental to fairness to be allowed to defend your
interests and nake a presentation. That was not allowed
before the GAC made its decision.

So going to the NGPC afterward, M. LeVee said
afterward -- after the GAC had decided, potentially
based on ni stakes, potentially based on politics,
what ever, we'll talk about sonme of the things that nmay
have been the bases.

Going to the NGPC afterward, say, Wait a m nute.
We see the transcript. Peru nade a m stake. That did
not lead to any NGPC action here.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: May | ask you the question
al luded to before, now, if you are finished dealing with
t hi s page of your handout ?

MR. THORNE: |'ve got nore, but ask the question
now, pl ease.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | think it may help us all.

You under st andably have enphasi zed t he
pronouncenent by the NGPC that it didn't have a witten
rational e for the consensus advi se.

But are you arguing to us that the full record
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t hat was established yesterday that was available to the
NGPC -- the e-mails, the proposals for explaining what
the applicabl e standards were that GAC was going to

eval uate, the information that had been devel oped as a
result of the early warning, are you -- is it your
position, M. Thorne, that the availability of that

i nformati on before and to the NGPC should not be taken
into account by this panel because the NGPC was

ot herwi se -- wi thout that would have been functioning on
a blind basis?

MR. THORNE: Your Honor, |'m absolutely arguing
that. The -- any rational decision that says we've
deci ded for a mechanical reason, the GAC said so, we've
decided this party wins, and here's a list of all the
letters that cane in. Here is the docket sheet of al
briefs that were filed. W read your briefs and we've
deci ded one party wins -- that would not be a rational
deci si on.

I know sonetines courts have power to issue
abbrevi ated decisions in very sinple cases. But in
cases that are inportant and that tend to be
precedential, a rational decision nmeans you have offered
a testabl e hypothesis, you' ve gone through the
di sci pline, the accountability of explaining why sonmeone

w ns and soneone | oses based on the conpeting
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consideration. That's not in anything the NGPC did.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Now, wait a second. | really
think it's inportant to your client that | understand
you.

You are not disputing that the NGPC had all this
other information, alluded to it, and reviewed it, are
you?

MR. THORNE: There is no evidence in the record
that they reviewed anything. There's a list of the
things that came in. W've received your letters.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Didn't the substance of
M. Atallah's testinony confirmthat not only was there
a citation to that additional material, but
consi deration of it?

MR. THORNE: There's no evidence of the
consideration in the decision of the NGPC.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: |'m asking you about your
recol |l ection of yesterday's testinony of M. Atall ah.

MR. THORNE: | recall he said they spent a |ong
time where they had a lot of material in front of them
| did not hear him say ever that the NGPC bal anced
conpeti ng considerations and wei ghed them as the byl aws
require themto.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: |I'mnot in the position to know

by nmenory what he said. W'IIl all be able to find out
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when we review the transcript. But | take it, then,

t hat regardl ess of what he said, fromyour client's
point of view, you're asking this panel to treat that
part of the record as nonexistent in deciding whether or
not the NGPC conplied with its duties and
responsibilities; is that correct?

MR. THORNE: |'m asking the panel to treat what
| CANN did here as it had done in the .africa case and in
the . persiangulf case of the sanme period where it was a
basi cal |y nmechani cal application. |1f you had consensus
GAC advice, that was sufficient. That was the
rational e.

One of the questions | think it was Judge O Brien
asked yesterday is: "So the only thing standing in the
way of Amazon and the gTLD, the only in between is the
GAC advice?" It was all based on the GAC advi ce.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: You know, | understand why the
cases you are citing are helpful, and I assure you, |
will review again every single word in those cases. So
it's a perfectly appropriate thing for you to rely on
this, but I don't think you really answered nmy question.

This case may be nmuch |ike the other |IRP panels
that you are alluding to, and this panel will nake an
i nfornmed decision as to which of the prior precedents is

cl osest or nost applicable.
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But ny question to you is: Is it your position
t hat when we independently review the record and when we
col l ectively confer, we are not supposed to take into
account the full record that was before the NGPC?

Don't answer with respect to other cases; just
answer with respect to this case.

MR. THORNE: The record before the NGPC is
rel evant to what the NGPC m ght have consi dered.

| don't think you've heard any testinony
yesterday, and there's nothing in the NG s (sic)
decision that says it did what the bylaws in the cases
descri be of bal ancing conpeting factors and reaching a
reasoned deci sion.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Those are two different
things. Let nme try this, though, just -- because |
think it's inportant for both counsel to kind of follow
the logic track here.

On the one hand you are arguing that the byl aws
and precedent requires that the GAC provide a -- reasons
or a rationale for its consensus advice.

If you are correct, end of case, really, | nean

in the sense that that did not happen on this record.

But if, in fact, the NGPC -- if we decide that
even without a -- that there is not that requirenment --
by the way, |I don't know. But let's just -- we need to
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have what the fallbacks are here. So let's assune
arguendo that there is no requirenment. And to those
circunstances, we assune it would be appropriate for the
NGPC to take a | ook at the record in terns of what were
the underlying public policy interest or rationale for

t he GAC deci si on.

And that's, | think -- that's not exactly the
guestion Judge Matz was asking, but that's the question
| have, because the next -- if | disagree with you, the
next step | have to know is can we consider that and are
there legitimte public policy reasons or interests in
the record that was before the NGPC

And | et nme say parenthetically -- I'msure
M. LeVee will clarify this, but | thought | saw
yesterday that in the recitations of the NGPC with
respect to this matter and when it nmade the May deci sion
that it said that it had considered various docunents
and things that had been presented to it. That's a
separate fact issue, | guess, that will be probably
easily resolved one way or the other.

But anyway, |'mjust sort of interested. So if
you don't prevail, what is your argunent? |Is that it?

MR. THORNE: No, Your Honor. There are
several --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | nean don't prevail on the
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issue that there's a required rationale that the GAC was
required to, under the bylaws and articles and so forth
and case precedent, to give reasons.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Can | ask a question that
goes along with that? |It's sonmewhat corollary to that.

Is it your position -- so |ooking at the DCA
Trust case, paragraph 74 (as read):

"As previously decided by this

panel, such accountability" --

And this is a question for M. LeVee as well.

(As read):

-- "such accountability requires

an organi zation to explain or give

reasons for its activities, accept

responsibility for them and to disclose

the results in a transparent manner."

Is it your position that just listing all of the
t hi ngs that have been submtted to the NGPC does not
satisfy giving reasons for its activity, accepting
responsibility for them and disclosing results in a
t ransparent nmanner?

MR. THORNE: That's correct.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And that would be applicable
to the NGCP (sic) and the GAC?

MR. THORNE: That's particularly applicable to
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the NGPC but also to the GAC
ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: So in other words, just
sayi ng, Yeah, we received it -- it's not a reasoned
opi nion, in your view, to say, We received all these
docunents and this is our decision?
MR. THORNE: That's correct. It would be like a

trial court saying, Here's the docket sheet of things

|'ve considered everything, here is nmy decision, with no
rationale attached to it. You wouldn't know why.

There would be no way -- in this case, there's no
review in court, so you don't have a court of appeals to
review your work. But there's a community that you are
hol di ng | CANN accountable to, and they want to know, did
| CANN do sonething that was accountable or just pro
f or ma.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Why don't you proceed,

M . Thor ne.

MR. THORNE: Go ahead to the next slide.

So there is no dispute that the --

Next sli de.

VWhat | would like to do is very briefly talk
about the rationales that GAC may have had, that GAC

nmenmbers may have had.

We know from M. Atallah's testinmony -- | think
he agreed yesterday -- | think he agreed that there was
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no consensus on the rationale at the GAC. Every country
had their own reasons. Maybe only a few countries had
reasons and everybody el se went along with it. But
there was no consensus on a rationale. | think he
agreed with that.

When we started this case, there were two things
that were apparent to us. One was that in lieu of a GAC
rationale, the NGPC in its decision credited the early
war ni ng statement of Brazil and Peru, which was based on
things that | CANN now |l argely adnits were wrong.

Peru thought this was a geographic nanme on the
list. And both Brazil and Peru thought they had
sovereign rights, which the independent |egal expert
that 1 CANN hired said, This isn't the case.

So we thought, okay, the reasons in the early
warning are wong. And so if that's what the NGPC
t hi nks was the rationale that they were approving,

t hey' re approving sonething that was w ong.

In the docunent discovery that we've done,

i ncl udi ng docunents that we got only Friday night, we
now have a different story of additional reasons that
appear to have notivated at |east the -- sonme of the
countries that were advocating for the consensus advice
and | CANN itself.

So we tal ked about sone of that with M. Atall ah
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yesterday, and I1'd like to very briefly walk through a
few pi eces of that now, make sure that that was clear.
You all have in front of you the set of Atallah

exhibits from yesterday.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | do.
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think so.
MR. THORNE: | want to tal k about four: It's

Exhi bit 11, Exhibit 10, Exhibit 15, Exhibit 5.
Starting with Exhibit 11. W saw in other

docunments and M. Atallah confirmed in the docunments

that it was basic m ssionary work done by | CANN

| eadership. The CEO Fadi Chehadé, and his man on the

ground, Everton Lucero, and then sonetinmes acconpani ed

by others, went to visit different countries in Latin

Ameri ca.
Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP
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Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential

In This IRP

MS. BEYNON: We've just noticed that sonebody may

not have the conplete set of exhibits, so would it be

hel pful if we provided the stickered set

t hat was used yesterday?

of exhibits

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | organi zed them

MS. BEYNON: Okay.
ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: "' m m ssing

one |'m m ssing.

don't --

12, is the only

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: So |'mjust trying to

synt hesi ze this. Redacted - Information Designated
Confidential In This IRP
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Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

It's another way of stating there's a strong

presunption if there's consensus GAC advice that an

application will be rejected or that the application
will not proceed. And so | see that.
| actually | ooked at all your docunents. | think

your argunment is that we could draw an inference from
t hose docunents that -- perhaps a reasonable inference
that one of the -- one or perhaps the real reason for a
deference on the part of the NGPC to the GAC advice here
is the concerns with the ITR treaty and the |ike.

| mean, | don't know that you have proven that,
but I think you could argue that there's an inference
that one m ght draw that the -- whatever else --

what ever other reasons were given were nake wait reasons

and that the real reason was -- at |east the real reason
that 1 CANN or the NGPC essentially -- | think you m ght
argue -- adopted the consensus advice w thout a |ot of

guestioning of it in terns of whether there were

l egitimate and valid public interest reasons was that it
was nore concerned about its relationship with
governments and the I TR treaty.

| don't know that you quite nade that case, by
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t he way, because that's a big inference to draw here.
But I'm not saying -- | don't know. That seems to be
what you're arguing to.

MR. THORNE: To react to it, | think you're right
about the factual inference that we see in these
docunents. But the argunent is nore nodest.

The argunent is sinply there's enough snoke here
that the NGPC exercising its duties of transparency and
accountability should have investi gat ed.

These docunents, these neetings, these
di scussions -- they are not nentioned anywhere in the

NGPC r ati onal e.

Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Then there will be
consequences if the -- there's the threat there will be
sonme consequences if the I CANN board granted the .amzon

applications, right? | nean, that's in one of these
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docunents.

MR. THORNE: Correct. If that was a rationale
relied on by the NGPC, it wasn't expressed. This --
they listed, faithfully, all the letters that were sent.
They didn't list any of these other inputs to the
deci sion. There's enough here they should have
investigated. And if they had investigated, this is not
a situation of harm ess error or if they | ooked, they
woul dn't have found anything. It [ooks |ike they woul d
have found sonmething. M. Lucero knew a |ot. He was
t heir enpl oyee.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Well, what would they have
found? What is the snoke that you say there was enough
snoke to warrant sonething?

MR. THORNE: Let ne just show you the next
docunent. Maybe that will help.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: In answering the question,
per haps you can also at |east anticipate that I would
appreci ate gui dance on your view as to whether or not
there's any different weight or stature that any given
governnent has conpared to any given comrercial menber
of the much broader I CANN aren't governnents no |less --
don't governnments and conmercial entities enjoy the sane
rights and the same status is sonething I would

appreci ate your touching on as well.
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MR. THORNE: Let nme start with that. Judge WMatz,
t hank you for the questions.

Looki ng at the excerpts provision, bylaws Article
|, Section 2, paragraph 11 in the mddle of the first
page says (as read):

"ICANN is rooted in the private

sector, recognizing that governnents and

public authorities are responsible for

public policy."

And we're going to duly take into account their
consi deration, but where do you start it's rooted in the
private sector? Here, the private sector was ignored.

It was totally subordinated to the public.
Let me ask -- answer the question about the quid

pro quo or the horse trading that was goi ng on.

Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP
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Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Is the point that you are
maki ng here, M. Thorne, when you | ook at the GAC, which
has no reasoning to support its consensus, and you | ook
at the NGCP, the only two reasons that you can discern
are geographic list, which was a m stake, and sovereign
right, which the professor disagrees with, hired by
| CANN, it sounds kind of |ike a Chinal/South China Sea
type argunent.

Those woul d be the only reasons that could back
up the decision, and they are both inaccurate as a
matter of |law and as a matter of fact.

And then you point out that in these undi scl osed
docunents that weren't disclosed in the reasoning, that
there's all this snoke, basically that the Latin
Ameri cans are saying, we are done with ICANN. If we
| ose this, we are out.

And then | think we saw sone docunents yesterday
where the U S. and U K. basically took a pass on it to
keep | CANN toget her, and Amazon was sacrificed to the
expedi ency of keeping | CANN t oget her and keeping the

Latins in | CANN
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Is that basically what you are arguing these
docunents show?

MR. THORNE
Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Okay. So let's assune al
that's true.

Is it your explanation that we don't need to nmake
those findings as a panel, but it certainly would
explain -- or would offer a notive, so to speak, for why
t he decision was issued wi thout any rational e?

MR. THORNE: Exactly, Your Honor.

| do think we are making a nore nodest claim
Li ke we're not asking you based on these docunents,
pl ease find the real reason was horse trading on other
i ssues. There's substantial evidence of that. But
just -- there was enough here that the NGPC should have
done sone further investigation and provided a rationale
for condemi ng Anazon ot her -- based on the incorrect
rational es.

One nore -- two quick docunents to | ook at.
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Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

If there's any justification to explain the
di sparate treatnent of Amazon and | piranga or Amazon and
all the other applications that don't get reviewed, it
can't be. The explanation can't be. W've decided to
single this out for GAC advice because it's a U. S.-based
conmpany.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: So let nme ask this.
Clearly, Brazil rounded up Iran and Russia and China to
get these statenents in the GAC, Thailand, which -- so
they round up this gallery of folks to support themin
t he GAC.

And the U S. and the U K and the other western
countries, with the exception of Australia, which kind
of says, hey, this isn't really working at all, we

shoul d do sonmething totally new, they get this GAC
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advi ce.

Wul dn't it be perfectly acceptable froma
political standpoint for the U S. and the U K. to say,
to keep this whole thing together, we're going to stand
back. W're going to sacrifice Amazon for the greater
good of the international comunity, to keep the
I nternet together, to keep these countries from signing
the I TR

Politically, that's a perfectly -- it may not be
a fair decision for your individual client, but that's
sonet hing politically the governnents could do. And so
t here would be nothing wong for the GAC making just a
nakedly political decision to do what they did.

But it's your argunent, | think, that the board
has a different duty. But it's not a political

organi zation. That is a rule of |aw based organi zation,

and it has to do independent investigation. It has to
have | egal reasoning for its decisions. It can't act in
a nakedly political fashion to save itself. It has to

do the right thing according to its bylaws, its
articles, and that sort of thing.

So the board is in a different position than the
governnents, right, but it is just cutting political
deal s.

MR. THORNE: Governnents can do what governnents
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do. Now, the United States here -- M. LeVee brought up
this docunent yesterday. He quoted from pieces of it.
|'"d like to | et you see the whole docunent. This is
Exhibit C34. It's already in the record. This is the
United States abstention statenent.

You can see fromthe way this is witten, the
author -- although they are not going to stand up to the
GAC, the author is very concerned about the principle
that's being -- so the author of this U S. statenent
descri bes the principle.

(As read):

"United States affirnms our support

for free flow of information and freedom

of expression, does not use sovereignty

as a valid basis for objecting to the

terms. We have concerns about the

effect of such clains on the integrity

of the process.”

They go on to say (as read):

"We thought the GAC had decided it

had a subordinate role.”

Not -- the GAC wasn't in charge back in 2011
And it agreed that other nechanisns woul d define the
rel evant geographi c nanes.

It goes on to say (as read):
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"The United States is not aware of

an international consensus that

recogni zes governnental rights and

geographic terms."

And it goes on to say, by the way, we m ght not
abstain next tine, but here they did.

The United States was also trying to gracefully
exit fromits partial control over I CANN at the tine.

So the United States had other conplications.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: May | just ask this. | really
salute M. OBrien for positing the question in the
hel pful way he did about the interests of nations and
the interests of a community of Internet users. |'m not
sure that you directly answered his question, but let ne
ask you this:

The board whose conduct we are evaluating is the
board of I CANN, the board of directors.

And as a general proposition, do you agree that
menmbers of the board of the entity in question, nenmbers
of the I CANN board, have a fiduciary duty to protect and
pronote the interests of I CANN as a functioning body?
And just answer that question yes or no.

MR. THORNE: | agree that the board has a duty to
protect the entity on which they serve, and that would

include carrying out the commtnents to the community

Page 295

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

that this is a nonprofit organization. They are
chartered under the articles and bylaws to serve a
community rooted in the private sector

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: The board, no question, has a
duty to conply with its governing docunents: the
articles, the bylaws, in this case the provision
relating to GAC. But does it also have the duty to
preserve itself in the face of potential dissolution
arising out of conpetition froman alternative network
of Internet users?

MR. THORNE: |If the rationale -- | think the
answer is no, Judge Matz. But if the rationale that
| CANN adopted was to save ourselves, we're going to
sacrifice Amazon and Patagonia, if that was the
rationale, to be honest and transparent, they shoul d
have witten that down.

We feel threatened as an organi zation. And we
are so threatened, that we've agreed with Brazil in
private meetings we hadn't previously disclosed. W are
going to sacrifice these strings.

If that's the rationale, transparency would have
requi red disclosure. Instead, they said, we've got this
Early Warning that says these are geographi c names or
sovereign rights. But this is not -- it's not -- if

that was a rationale, it's not transparent.
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ARBI TRATOR MATZ: But when you use the term
"political expediency,"” politics has becone a dirty word
these days for regrettable reasons in a |lot of quarters.

But the politics that you're asking us to
eval uate are not geopolitics about national borders,
trade agreenents, and anything else. |It's about the
politics of the Internet?

MR. THORNE
Redacted - Information Designated  Confidential In This IRP

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: It's not about I CANN s role.

MR. THORNE: That phrase cane up in terns of why
did the United States not block the GAC consensus?
Because clearly if they had, as we saw in this period,
| CANN nmechanically followed the GAC, and the application

woul d have gone through as the Persian Gulf went
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t hrough.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: M. LeVee, objection?

MR. LeVEE: | so apologize to interrupt, but
could we take a break? M client, who's had a double
hip replacenent, is in pain. So if we could just take a
ten-m nute break, she can decide how she wants to
pr oceed.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: O course. We wll recess
for ten mnutes. We'IlIl resume at around 10:50.

We're in recess.

(Recess.)

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: All right. W're back on the
record.

M . Thorne?

MR. THORNE: Judge Bonner, because it's inmportant
and | want to make sure we've done our very best job on
t he question of whether the GAC needs to provide a
rationale, | thought | would nmention sonmething that |
brought up in the opening. |'mgetting a copy nmade so
that you can see it.

But GAC -- I CANN' s own summary of what happened
in DCA Trust, they issued a board resolution
describing -- a board resolution describing what
happened in DCA Trust. They said the panel in DCA Trust

cited two main concerns relating to the GAC s advice in
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DCA' s application.

Nunmber one, the panel was concerned that the GAC
did not include and that | CANN did not request a
rationale of the GAC s advice. So that was | CANN' s own
interpretation of that precedent.

Now, the next question --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Are you reading froma
docunent? Because | m ssed the --

MR. THORNE: |'m quoting a document that | wll
have a copy of for you nonmentarily.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Okay. Thank you.

MR. THORNE: The point is that's how | CANN

under stands the DCA Trust precedent. Now we go to Judge

Mat z' s question -- was it your question, Judge Matz?
If you have different precedents -- and | don't
know of a different precedent -- that says the GAC

doesn't need a rationale. But if you were eval uating
t he soundness of DCA, 1'd like to invite ny coll eague,
Greg Rapawy, briefly to -- with the panel's indul gence,
to wal k through the bylaws that support the correctness
of the DCA precedent.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  All right.

MR. RAPAWY: | thank you, Judge Bonner, and
menbers of the panel. | was planning to work primarily

fromthe docunent that we handed out before that has key
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provisions of the articles, bylaws, and Gui debook and
just to make sure that we had nmade our best case on the
guestion whether the text of the bylaws is consistent
with the reading that we think it was given in DCA
Trust, along with a nunber of other decisions.

| -- in doing this, I want to focus both on the
parts of the bylaws that apply directly, we think, by
their terms to the GACitself, which the board, then,
has an obligation to enforce. And also to go through
the parts of it that apply to | CANN as a whol e, which
t he NGPC al so has an obligation to conply with, although
they don't apply to the GAC directly.

So starting with the bylaws, Article I,

Section 2, that's the Core Values section. And a little
pi ece of text at the end there nmakes clear that this
section applies to any | CANN body making a
reconmendati on or deci sion.

And so |I think that would, by its terns, include
t he GAC.

And that any body doing so has the obligation to
exercise its judgnment to determ ne which core values are
nost rel evant.

So we think that in itself is a requirenment, to
have sonme agreenent on which of the values are rel evant,

but then it goes further, to determne if necessary an
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appropriate and defensi bl e bal ance anong conpeti ng
val ues.

If you don't have agreed reasons for a decision,
we don't think that you could have conplied with that
provi si on.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: G ve ne that provision again.
' m | ooking at the handout you gave us, and | don't see
it. \Which one is it?

MR. RAPAWY: On the first page, bylaws, Article
|, Section 2, that little paragraph down there at the
end after the nunbered paragraphs, it's sort of a footer
to the section.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | see it.

MR. RAPAWY: So any | CANN body shall exercise its
judgnent, and then going further, nust determ ne if
necessary and appropriate and defensi bl e bal ance anpng
conpeti ng val ues.

And we would tie that back to two decisions that
have interpreted that to require a reasoned anal ysis.

And | would cite Vistaprint, which is in the
record as CLA 004, paragraph 190. And then the decision
we've cited as GCC -- I'malso going too fast -- GCC
Interim which we cited as CLA 029, paragraph 76.

So that's where we get the idea that there has to

be a reasoned analysis. And if you agree with the
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analysis in Vistaprint and GCC Interim although neither
of those cases were directly discussing the GAC, we
think that plain |anguage of that |ast footer paragraph
there takes you to the proposition the GAC itself has an
obligation to do what is described in those decisions to
provi de a reasoned anal ysis.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Because of the | anguage "any
| CANN body" ?

MR. RAPAWY: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  All right.

MR. RAPAWY: Now, going to the Article IIl, this,
| think, M. Thorne covered before. | wanted to provide
one additional cite in connection with it. So Article
11, Section 1, just a little bit further down on that
page applies by its terns to I CANN and its constituent
bodi es. That would include the GAC, | think it's now
agreed. And they have both the transparency and the
fair procedures obligations, that you discussed the
di stinction between those earlier. And the additional
cite | would give you there is the .sport decision,
whi ch - -

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Dot what ?

MR. RAPAWY: . sport deci sion.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay.

MR. RAPAWY: And in particular, paragraph 7.90,
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the .sport deci sion.

And | apol ogize for not witing down the CLA
nunber when | was putting together the notes, but it is
cited in our brief.

So we think that that is sonething that the GAC
had to do and that the NGPC had an obligation to inquire
into whether the GAC did that.

We al so draw, maybe less directly, | think stil
a pretty strong inference fromthe text of Article I
Section 3 and Article IV, Section 1. Those are the ones
above and below. | think we've nmade the point that we
believe that GAC advice is a type of singling out a
particular party for disparate treatnment by | CANN as a
whol e.

| understand I CANN s contrary position is that
when the GAC decides -- oh, I"'mrem nded that .sport is
CLA 032, just to conplete that cite.

So Article Il, Section 3, | think the main point
of dispute there is whether giving GAC advi ce counts as
singling out a party for disparate treatnent.

We think that probably read in that provision is
singling out a party for disparate treatnment, and the --
and if that is the case, then the requirenent that it be
justified by substantial and reasonable cause is right

there in the text.
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And then, finally, the accountability obligation.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Are you saying that the fact
that GAC gives advice with respect to a particul ar
application by, let's say, a particular conpany --

MR. RAPAWY:  Uh- huh.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: -- to essentially reject or
advising the rejection of the application, that that
itself is disparate treatnment w thout warrant?

MR. RAPAWY: Yes. And that is totally sonething
they can do if there is substantial and reasonabl e
cause, which if the GAC has a good reason, there is.

But it has to have that reason

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: So a public policy interest
in the sensitivities of a nane to people that are within
a country or nmultiple countries, wouldn't that be a
sufficient public policy reason for giving advice to
reject an application?

MR. RAPAWY: So we don't think -- so first -- |
mean, | think that at this stage of the argunent where
" m focusing on point that there is no agreed public
policy rationale by the GAC and t he NGPC never
investigated to see whether there was on such, but if
you were to get to the question of whether the
sensitivities to a particul ar geographical name were for

a public policy reason, we think that it could not be.
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Because we think the Gui debook process for
assi gni ng geographic nanmes i s exclusive, and we think
that the -- to the extent that a sensitivity could be an
acceptabl e public policy reason, it would have to be at
| east a public policy reason that was agreed upon by the
full GAC.

So in theory, you could have a |ot of different
public policy reasons. You touched upon sonme of them
yesterday. The idea of certain types of conduct that
are crimnal, such as child pornography, you night have
religious sensitivities as well.

I sl am and hal al are other types of strings that
have that, that we think would legitimately fall within
t he concept of sensitivity. But nerely saying we think
we own this nanme, which is what Brazil essentially said
here, would not be an adm ssible reason for the GAC

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Counsel, | have a question
It may or may not be rel evant.

MR. RAPAWY:  Yes.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: |s there any group,

i ndi genous group of people that call thenselves Anmazons?

My understanding is it came from G eek nythol ogy.
But is there any indigenous people that call thensel ves
Amazons that you're aware of?

MR. RAPAWY: That |'m personally aware of, no.

Page 305

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

| ' maware that was a disputed issue in question before
the 1 CC expert and that he found for a nunber of reasons
that no material harm had been shown to a identifiable
group, which is the test under the Cui debook.

| don't think -- | nean, you would have, |
suppose, people who called thensel ves the residents of
Amazonas, which is -- but as we've discussed, that's not
an exact match for the geographical name on the |ist.

Does that answer your question?

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Thank you

MR. RAPAWY: And then the accountability points
under Article IV. | think M. Thorne made, and |'m not
goi ng to bel abor it.

But | do think that to the extent that you agree
with the DCA Trust panel, that the accountability
requires accepting responsibility for decisions, | do
think there's a problemw th the GAC on the one hand
gi ving no reasons whatsoever and then the board on the
ot her hand saying, we will presune, essentially, that
GAC consensus neans --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: \hat ?

THE W TNESS: Presune that GAC consensus, in and
of itself, nmeans there were sufficient public policy
reasons, and we won't inquire further.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: You agree that the ITC (sic)
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expert -- | mean, who found that there was no materi al
harmin the use of at |east the English name Amazon,

that his decision was actually not available to the NGPC
because it was made after the NGPC actually rejected the
application?

MR. RAPAWY: W th respect, | actually disagree
with that. | know there is sone confusion on the
chronol ogy in the briefs.

So the I CC expert's decision was made after the
GAC advice. And |ICANN has forcefully argued that the
GAC advice cane after and that -- sorry, that the IC
expert point cane after the GAC advice. But it cane
before the NGPC s decision. And it was cited in one of
our letters to the NGPC

So it would have been possible for the NGPC to
consider it, although they did not do that.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  All right. So it's in,
actually, one of the docunments referred to by the NGPC
in that it considered or that had been submtted to it?

MR. RAPAWY: Yes. In that long list at the end,
one of the letters has a reference to the | CC expert,
one of the letters from--

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Thank you for the
clarification.

MR. THORNE: This is a copy of ICANN 's press
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rel ease describing what they understood DCA Trust
(i naudi ble), which | read from

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let's mark this as hearing
exhibit next in order which I think is 4.

MS. BEYNON: | believe it should be Hearing
Exhi bit 6.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: What are Hearing 4 and 5,

t hen?

MS. BEYNON: |'ve got themright here. W' ve
marked 4 as the slide presentation that was the opening
statenent. |'m happy to hand out a set of the marked
exhi bits from yesterday.

(Hearing Exhibit 4 marked for

identification.)

MS. BEYNON: And 5 is our slide for today, is
what we were planning to mark that. But we can get the
exhi bits strai ghtened out.

(Hearing Exhibit 5 marked for

identification.)

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  All right. So this will be
Hearing Exhibit 6. And Hearing Exhibit 6, for the
record, is a -- appears to be a rel ease of sonme sort by
| CANN with respect to the DCA Trust deci sion.

| think that's a sufficient identification for

t he record.
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(Hearing Exhibit 6 marked for

i dentification.)

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay, M. Thor ne.

MR. THORNE: Your Honor, just a few nore points
to follow up what M. Rapawy tal ked about under the
byl aws. There was actual disparate treatnent here
bet ween two strings .ipiranga and .yamaxun on the one
hand and .amazon and the Chi nese equi val ence.

M. LeVee thinks that the .ipiranga is
particularly inportant because he had a slide on this

yesterday. And if you remenber, his slide described the

Amazon River. It's a very large river. And he called
the Ipiranga -- | thought it was a river, but he calls
it a brook. It is in the Brazilian National Anthem

don't think that is of nmonment either, but he described a
rationale that the NGPC m ght have been thinking of
in -- if they were called upon to distinguish between
Amazon and | piranga.

It is clear that the NGPC has to avoid disparate
treatnment including through its constituent advice.
It's not enough to say that the GAC objected here and
that's the reason we differentiate. That's not a
reason.

But the point | want to make on this is several

prior decisions, such as Vistapoint (sic), which is CLA
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4 in paragraph 190, tal k about the problem of | CANN s
deci si on-makers not giving justifications and the
counsel comng in later to fill it in. And the later
fill-in by counsel is not allowed to substitute for the
NGPC offering a rationale.

And in this particular situation, |I don't think
the NGPC woul d have said size of river or body of water
as the determ ning factor because they had Persian Gulf
in front of them which is an even bi gger body of water.
The only things that correlate to the difference between
| pi ranga and Amazon are it was a Brazilian oi
conpany applying for Ipiranga and a U S. -based -- an
i nadm ssi ble U. S. -based conpany applying for .amazon.
And the fact that the GAC advice, just the GAC advice it
i ssued agai nst Amazon, those were the only differences.
That's what correlates to this disparity.

Swi tchi ng gears, the panel had invited the GAC
chair at the tinme of .amazon, Heather Dryden, to provide
witten testinony. We tal ked about this. She was the
same GAC chair in the DCA Trust case. She declined the
invitation.

It's quoted in sone length in two different
docunments that we've had. |'mnot going to go through
the entirety of it, but I think a flavor of her

testinony in the .africa case m ght be hel pful.
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The two docunents are CLA 5, which is the raw
transcript, and CLA 2, the .africa decision, DCA Trust
deci si on where the panel there thought it was inportant
to quote at length from M. Dryden. | just want to give
you a feeling for it.

Starting on -- I'"mjust going to walk through a
couple of the slides here. Arbitrator Kessedjian wanted
to understand -- like this panel has asked -- very
precisely, as concrete as you can be, what are these
concepts that were described in her witten testinony?
How are they applied by the GAC in the DCA case?

So she's referring back to the w tness statenent
that Ms. Dryden had provided, and Ms. Dryden's answer
was (as read):

"That is what the w tness

statenment says, but the link to the GAC

and the role that | played in terns of

t he GAC di scussions did not involve ne

interpreting those three things. 1In

fact, the GAC did not provide rationale

for the consensus objection.”

Judge Cahill then junps in and asks (as read):

"But you want to check if the
countries are following the right --

followng the rules. |If there are
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reasons for rejecting this or if it

falls within the three things that ny

col | eague' s tal ki ng about."

Ms. Dryden answers (as read):

"The practice anong governnents is

t hat governnents can express their view,

what ever it may be, and so there's a

deference to that."

That's certainly the case here as well. If a
country tells -- tells the GAC it has a concern, that's
not really sonmething that's evaluated in the sense you
mean by the governnent -- the other governnents. That's
not how governnents work with each ot her

And then she goes on to say (as read):

"This is just politics. It's al

about politics.”

She wants to be clear in saying the GAC did not
identify a rationale in that case, and that the Early
War ni ng that had been offered, an Early Warni ng would
not provide a rationale.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Where does she say that?

MR. THORNE: This slide, line 20, we had sone
di scussion earlier about Early WArnings. So Early
War ni ngs were issued by individual countries and they

indicated their rationale, but again, that's not a GAC
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Vi ew.

Arbitrator Kessedjian was apparently concerned
that the witness -- we're going off script, was not
foll owi ng what the witten testinony had indicated, and
so she said, | want to -- | just want to cone back to
the point that I was making earlier to your paragraph 5,
referring to witten testinony. You said -- you
answered to nme saying, That is mnmy declaration, but it
was not exactly what is going on. Now, we are here to
make sure the rules had been obeyed by -- |I'm
synthesizing. | don't understand how as the chair of
the GAC you can tell us that basically the rules do not
matter.

Agai n, |I'mrephrasi ng what she said.

| want to give you another opportunity to explain
to us why you were nentioning these criteria in your
written declaration, but now you are telling us this
doesn't matter.

And the arbitrator asks -- or offers the w tness,
You want to read again what you wote? It's -- or
supposedly wote. It's paragraph 5.

She says, | don't need to read ny decl aration,
t hank you.

The header for the GAC s di scussion throughout

was to refer to strings or applications that were
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controversial or sensitive. That's very broad.

The arbitrator interrupts, I'msorry, you say the
rules? Say problematic -- these are the things she
listed. Problematic, potentially violate national |aw,
raise sensitivities. These are precise concepts.

The witness repeats those and says, Those are
qui te broad.

The arbitrator asks, So what are we left with?
No rul es?

And the answer, No rationale with the consensus
obj ecti ons.

We have the sanme situation in this case as in
that case. | won't belabor it, but one finding,
paragraph 113 of the decision, is in light of the clear
transparency obligation provisions of the bylaws the
panel woul d have expected the |I CANN board, at a m ni num
to investigate the matter further.

And then paragraph 109, which we went through
bef ore.

And M. LeVee conceded that if the board actually
had know edge that the GAC did sonething wong --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: This is 237

MR. THORNE: Yes. This is fromthe decision of
DCA Trust, paragraph 100.

(As read):
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"I'f the board actually knew it,

then we are dealing with board conduct."”

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: This is M. LeVee speaking
when?

MR. THORNE: In the DCA Trust case about the
.africa application.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: This is a transcript of
sonet hi ng he sai d?

MR. THORNE: That is a transcript of what he said
to the panel that is quoted by the panel deci sion,
because the panel found it inportant.

So next-to-last point I nmake and then | wll sit
down, Judge Matz, you asked about the bal ance of public
and private. W submt that the board here did not
eval uate Amazon's interest. O her than citing the
letters they received at the end, there's nothing in the
witten rationale that strikes a bal ance between the
di fferent core val ues.

M. Atallah, | think, would go on at great
l ength. M. Fadi Chehadé, we had a tape ready to play
yesterday if it had been useful.

They're marketing top-|evel domain nanmes because
conpani es want these. These are inportant for the
devel opnent of the Internet. There are a |ot of

advantages. This decision by the NGPC i s nothing about
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that as a bal ance to the GAC advi ce.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Are you asserting that the
NGPC itself failed to give reasons or rationale for its
decision to deny or reject the Amazon applications?

MR. THORNE: Yes, Your Honor.

The reasons can't be we received GAC advi ce and
we followed it. The reasons have to be we've -- the
proper course in the bylaws is you identify the rel evant
core val ues, you determ ne how they matter here, and you
bal ance themto reach a deci sion

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Well, that's a fairly highly
nuanced reasoned deci sion you just described. But you
don't think that they gave a sufficient reasoned
decision for their action, in essence, denying or
rejecting the Amazon applications?

MR. THORNE: That's correct. And one reason is
there is no discussion of the countervailing Amazon
interests. There were private investnent and innovation
opportunities affecting a very | arge nunber of
customers, and we're going to deny that because we think
the public interest identified by Brazil was greater.
There's no bal ancing of interest.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: There's no bal ancing --
that's a little different than arguing that there's not

a reasoned deci si on.
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MR. THORNE: A reasoned deci sion, as decided by
the GCC in Vistaprint cases, requires -- let nme pull up
t he | anguage.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: It stands for the proposition
t here needs to be bal ancing, in other words, that the
deci sion of the NGPC needs to not just state why it's
rejecting the application, but it also had to do that in
t he context of bal ancing that against the interest of
t he applicant.

MR. THORNE: Article |, Section 2, which
M. Rapawy went through, said that footer |anguage, any
| CANN body maki ng a recommendation -- here we're talking
about the NGPC, not the GAC, the NGPC nmking a decision
as to determne the core values rel evant, how they
apply, determ ne an appropriate defensi bl e bal ance.

Vi staprint and GCC hol d that defensible bal ance requires
a reasoned analysis. That's a famliar idea to courts
or adm nistrative bodies subject to review |like the

adm ni strative procedure.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Okay.

MR. THORNE: That didn't happen here. There's a
m ssing piece. Even if you credited public interest on
t he one hand, the bal ance agai nst Amazon's interest is
m Ssi ng.

| am not going to go through all of the core
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val ues favoring Amazon. Yesterday M. Atall ah,

t hought, did testify, for exanple, there are benefits to
being the top-Ilevel domain owner controlling his own
destiny, giving users confidence, opportunities to

I nprove security -- this is in M. Hayden's testinony
and M. Atallah's testinony -- and proconpetitive
benefits to owning the gTLD.

Let ne shift to renmedy. |'m hoping you get this
far.

We're asking the panel to instruct the NGPC to
award the strings to .amazon and the Chinese and
Japanese equi val ents to Amazon.

DCA Trust is the npost aggressive of the
precedents again, holding that because you're foll ow ng
| CDR rul es as a baseline, you have power to issue a
bi ndi ng order.

The 2016 byl aws that have been adopted since by
| CANN confirm that our view confirns or codifies that
hol di ng.

| CANN agrees that -- they disagree that your
power extends to binding orders, but they agree you'd
reconmend a result here.

The only contrary precedent is Vistaprint, which
notes the force of DCA Trust reasoning. This m ght be

an exanpl e, Judge Matz, where you want to conpare the
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merits of the two decisions, the points that DCA Trust
relied on in saying that you should have the ful
strength of ICDR binding relief involve the inportance
of accountability. |If you don't order this, there's
nobody else to order it. |If they' re enforceable, the
application contracts require waiver of all other
remedi es by the applicants.

But whet her you issue a renedy that is binding or
a recommendation, there are two things | want to
enphasi ze.

First, we've been doing this a long tine.

M. Hayden's declaration tal ks about three years of
negotiating, trying to share the top-level domain with
Brazil. A long tinme w thout success.

We woul d urge you to set a deadline for board
action. |If you recomend the board do sonmething or if
you require themto do sonething, we think you should
set a deadl i ne.

One thing that M. LeVee will say, let nme just
anticipate, the process in the bylaws says if the board
is going to reject GAC advice, it's supposed to talk to
the GAC and then see if there's an accommodation. And
that's a lot. We tal ked about this yesterday.

If the board wants to foll ow that process here

and have further talks, it's inportant to have a
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deadl ine. The bylaws that would require -- this is
outside the IRP context -- would require further
negoti ati on or discussions between the board and the GAC
have to occur in a tinmely and efficient manner. So
that's already in the bylaws, the concept if there's
going to be further discussion, it's got to be tinely.

And then they go on, the bylaws go on in the next
par agraph, which is not cited here, to say that it's
possi bl e no solution may be reached.

I n other words, you nmay end up -- | guess that we
do cite it. It's Article XI, 2(k) (sic). It's possible
to award the application, never getting the GAC fully
onboard. You might try again, but if you fail, the
application goes forward.

And the other suggestion we have is if any
process between the board and the GAC is all owed, we
woul d urge you to retain jurisdiction so that if
ultimately this fails, we can cone back to a panel that
has invested the tinme and understandi ng the case and the
facts. It would be nore efficient for this panel to
consi der Round 2 than a new panel starting fresh.

No ot her questions, Your Honor.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Wit a minute. Before | |et
you go, |I'm not sure whether you argued 6, but | guess

your position is that the NPGC (sic) did abdicate its
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duty or role with respect to making an i ndependent
decision on the nerits?
MR. THORNE: Absolutely, Your Honor. If that's

not clear, then | --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Well, | just -- for sone
reason, | thought nmaybe you ski pped over 6, but maybe I
just -- my note-taking wasn't so good.

MR. THORNE: | may well have skipped a slide or
two, but we -- in the statenent issues that we handed up
yesterday, we -- | think we have three ways of | ooking

at the case. There are three different ways you could
deci de this.

Wy 1 is the GAC failed to give advice or if you
credit the reasons of Brazil to the whole GAC, contrary
to what Ms. Dryden says woul d be proper, those reasons
are flawed. They are wong. The real reasons may be
sonet hing el se. But the NGPC should have investigated.
They did not have enough facts; they didn't. And they
certainly did not issue a reasoned decision eval uating
factors or doing anything in Amazon's interests.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay. But | would assune --
yeah, those are three different possible grounds, |
suppose.

But if -- perhaps | don't know. |'mgoing to ask

this of M. LeVee as well, but if the record before us
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is or if we think we would conclude as a matter of fact
that the NGPC essentially deferred to the GAC advice,
consensus GAC advice, w thout maki ng any i ndependent
determ nation as to whether there was a -- were valid
and legitimate public policy interests behind it, in
ot her words, just deferred to it, that would be granting
a concl usive presunption to the GAC consensus advice
t hat woul d not be consistent with the rules, which the
rules require do give rise to a strong presunption that
the GAC advice is well-founded and based upon valid
public policy interests.

| think that's what the presunption is. But if,
in fact, they abdicated their role and didn't make an
i ndependent decision here, if that's what the record
shows or doesn't show --

MR. THORNE: That's exactly the argunent. It's
the difference between a presunption and a vet o,
del egating the authority that belongs to the NGPC as the
representative of the comunity in this area, delegating
it contrary to a bunch of things, |ike the new provision
that | added to the excerpts that say the advisory
comm ttees don't make decisions for | CANN

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Well, | thought that was part
of your argunent, and | just wanted to make sure that

M. LeVee -- that there are probably a nunber of things
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you respond to, but | would |like to hear a response to
that, anong the other issues that have been raised here.

Al right. Any further questions of M. Thorne
before we take a lunch break?

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: | have one nore question and
maybe M. LeVee as well.

If you take a look -- and I was trying to go back
through the early alerts. To the extent that the early
alerts forma basis which perhaps M. LeVee will argue
for the decision, the public interest decision that was
made by the board, you have got -- it's in the book.
It's a sovereign right of the country, sensitivity of
t he people of Amazonia, and | asked your coll eague about
t hat, whether there is an indigenous tribe called the
Amazons or sonething |ike.

And then the last one is reserving the .amazon
domai n name for people in Amazon to use at some point in
the future when the Amazon is nore fully devel oped.

Wth respect to that |ast issue of reserving the
domai n nanme kind of as -- like patrinony that belongs to
t hose people for a future use, what is Amazon's response
to that concern? And would that be a valid public
interest concern for the GAC to base its decision on?

MR. THORNE: The answer is no, that would not be

a correct basis. That would be both legally and | think
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factually incorrect.

The first legal answer to that is the applicant
Gui debook anticipated that there m ght be a current
applicant and a future applicant, sonebody that --
M. Atallah's testinony was in response to one of Judge

Mat z' s questions was they mi ssed the boat. They've got

a future idea. The people -- in the future, there my
be -- M. Atallah used the word "future" about four
times.

If that's the argunent, the CGui debook antici pated
in a different -- different structure called a comunity
objection. The governnents al so could have used ot her
than the GAC process, the GAC advi senent. The community
obj ection, the Gui debook says it shall not be a materi al
detriment causing the current applicant to | ose, that
sonebody in the future is going to apply for this.

If there were two applicants going head to head,
you' ve got to resolve, there's a contention

But if there's a current applicant and the future
applicant says, Wait, no, I mght want to use that in
the future, that's an invalid reason under the Gui debook
as witten. And | would then | ook into text and
structure as a way to understand what the Gui debook
tells you, that that's a decision they nade. The future

use does not supplant a current use.
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ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Do you have a cite for that?

MR. THORNE: It's in our prehearing brief.

|'"ve got two other related points. One is this
is a situation where future use by the Amazoni ans was
not precluded. Amazon offered -- and this -- the NGPC
acknowl edged but | think counted as a detrinent to
Amazon. Words, Amazonia, Amazonica, Amazonas -- al
these strings are available. Those are the terns that
t hat popul ation actually uses. So reserving Anazon,
whi ch they don't use, when these other names are
avail able is wong. And finally, Amazon offered to
share .amazon on various terns under the cite to the
Gui debook provision on comrunity objections is
Section 3.5.4.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN:  Thank you.

MR. THORNE: | have one other request for the
panel. You may want to take this under consideration.
M. LeVee nay agree or disagree.

We cited a fair number of docunents in the record
in our prehearing brief and in the other briefs. W
didn't cite everything. | know that there's a
vol um nous record here, but we cited a fairly small
number of things. And | hope my not nentioning every
singl e docunent we cited in our prehearing brief wll

not preclude your considering the things we cited in
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that brief also.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think I'mperfectly -- I'm
not sure -- let nme just say that | think if it's cited
in either parties prehearing brief, you can consider
that we will consider those exhibits even if they
haven't been nentioned in the hearing.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | agree.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: | agree.

MR. THORNE: Thank you.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Thank you, M. Thor ne.

So | think we should take our lunch recess here.

MR. LeVEE: Lunch will not be served until noon.
We can certainly take the recess. The alternative is
| " m happy to start.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Are you prepared to begin
argunment ?

MR. LeVEE: | am As |long or as short as you
want .

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Well, we'll at |east go until
[unch is here.

MR. LeVEE: It would be a shame to take lunch and
not have it.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Al'l right. So, M. LeVee, if

you will.
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ARGUMENT
BY MR. LeVEE:

So I'"'mgoing to provide, also, copies of ny
slides. And I"malso going to provide the panel a
bi nder with sonme exhibits. |I'mnot going to reference
each, but | took Judge Matz's statement yesterday to
sonme heart that it would be useful in show ng the
exhi bits as opposed to asking to wade through
everyt hi ng.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let's make this Hearing
Exhibit 7. What I'mreferring to is the set of the
slide deck that has just been presented by | CANN s
counsel as part of its closing presentation.

(Hearing Exhibit 7 marked for

i dentification.)

MR. LeVEE: Yes, thank you.

Some of the exhibits you saw yesterday, but |
t hought it would be helpful to have themin one
| ocati on.

So because |'mgoing to only have limted tinme
before the lunch arrives and distracts us all, |I'm going
to go through now the sunmary of ny argunent.

And then |I'mgoing to skip ahead to a slide or a
coupl e of slides that discuss the DCA case, because

M. Thorne spent a considerable amunt of his tine
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addr essi ng that.

But let me just give quickly the summary of ny
argunent because it is in many respects a direct
refutation of what you heard.

First, the GAC insisted on and received the right

to give advice on any application for any reason.

M. Atallah so testified yesterday. It's in his wtness
statement. M. Thorne did not even ask him questions on
t hat topic.

Second, that the 1CC s dism ssal of the community
objection to Amazon did not any in any way nullify the
GAC advice which predated the dism ssal in all events,
but nmore inportantly, the GAC had the right to object to
any string whether or not there was another objection
before the | CC

Third, the GAC i ssued consensus advice on the
applications that were supported by nunmerous countries
across the world and to which no country objected.

Fourth, there really is no evidence before the
panel that the GAC advice -- we'll conme to what the NGPC
did, but that the GAC advice was notivated by anything
other than legitimate public policy interests.

The NGPC thoroughly investigated over a ten-nonth
period. There's no evidence that the NGPC was concerned

about so-called threats from Brazil or Peru. | asked
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M. Atallah if the subject ever canme up at seven NGPC
meetings, and he said it did not. He attended all of
t hem

Surely, if people were concerned in doing sone
kind of tradeoff, there would have been at |east sone
di scussion of the topic. Instead, M. Atallah confirnmed
that there was none.

"Il explore later this afternoon the absence of
di scrim nation.

And | al so want to enphasize that M. Atallah's
testinony supported I CANN s position on all of these
issues, and I'mgoing to go into his testinony at sone
| engt h.

The one thing that he also testified in his
Wi tness statenent that is very inportant is that the GAC
specifically bargained for the right not to submt a
rationale. This is in his witness statement, Atallah
Exhi bit 1.

And he says in paragraph 20 on page 8 that in a
letter to the board, the GAC asked that | CANN renove
references indicating that future GAC Early Warni ngs and
advice nmust contain particular information or to take a
specific -- a specified formto provide flexibility.

And at the next neeting between the board and the GAC,

t he board agreed that it was not -- it had no intention

Page 329

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

to direct the GAC -- to direct to the GAC either its
processes or the wording it should use corresponding
into giving advice and to renove fromthe Gui debook any
requi renment that advice must give specific information.

Now, why is that inportant? Well, first, we've
had this | ong dialogue as to whether the GAC had sone
obligation to give a rationale. M. Atallah expl ai ned,
no, the GAC was not required to give a rationale. It
was sonet hing specifically negotiated between the GAC
and the board.

And candidly, in nost of the paragraphs where he
descri bed the relationship between the GAC and the
board -- he was here yesterday. He received zero
questions from M. Thorne on any of those topics.
asked a few

M. Thorne spent nost of his tinme asking about
the other notivations of Brazil and Peru, but there were
no questions about this particular topic. And so the
result is that we have evidence that's undi sputed that
the GAC specifically bargained for and received in the
Gui debook the ability to not provide the rationale.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: M. Thorne has argued,

t hough, that the -- that there is case precedent, either
DCA Trust or the |like, that have essentially, if we

followed it, are precedent for the proposition that the
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GAC advi ce nust be acconpani ed by a statenent of reasons
or rationale.

MR. LeVEE: Yes, and I'mgoing to skip to that on
the DCA decision. So I'll answer by saying I'mgoing to
skip to Slide 40 in a second, but | want to address one
ot her issue before that.

This is the first tinme that sonmeone has argued in
this way that the GAC had an obligation to do sonething
under the Gui debook or should have had an obligation to
do sonet hi ng under the Gui debook even though it's not
there. So let's concede that there is no | anguage in
t he Gui debook that requires it.

The question, then, is do the bylaws through --
we | ooked at several provisions -- through sone other
form even though nothing that was read to you this
nmor ni ng actually says the GAC nust give a rationale, can
we infer fromthe Guidebook -- here's the first problem
which is that Amazon is too late to bring this claim

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: From t he byl aws or the
Gui debook?

MR. LeVEE: They are too late to bring the claim
t hat the Gui debook did not have a certain provision in
it. And there are nultiple decisions, the booking.com
deci sion being the first one. But there are nmultiple

deci sions that say -- the Guidebook is the Gui debook.
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And if you had a problemw th the Gui debook and you're
goi ng to argue that the Gui debook was wrong, contrary to
the byl aws, you had an obligation to say sonething
during the course of the devel opnent of the Gui debook.

Amazon said nothing. And so we're left here,
five years after the final devel opnent or final issuance
of the Guidebook, with a challenge that essentially says
t he Gui debook may not have | anguage in it that says that
the GAC has to issue a rationale, but it should have had
such a provision. The board's decision not to inpose
this obligation on the GAC was w ong.

And every single I RP panel that has addressed the
guestion, Merck, Booking.com-- there are others that I
wll cite to you after the lunch break, every single
panel that has addressed that issue has said it is too
| ate years later to challenge the CGui debook by saying
that it violates the bylaws and that -- or that it has a
process that sonmehow i s inproper.

And so even before we get to the question of
whet her there's precedent, | do think that the entire
argunment, which really has sort of crystalized in the
closing, wasn't really set forth this way in the briefs,
but the entire argunent that the GAC s failure to
provi de a consensus rationale, it self-violates the

byl aws and, therefore, the CGui debook because the
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CGui debook doesn't contain the language. | think it's
barr ed.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: |Is there anything in the record
in this matter that denonstrates what information was
ei ther provided to Amazon or obtai ned by Amazon about
all of the ongoing iterations of the Gui debook?

MR. LeVEE: Yes. Every single draft was posted
on the Internet for public coment. So the drafts that
we're referring to -- and I'mgoing to cone to themin
the course of my argunent. The drafts of the Gui debook
that we're referring to, the first draft that makes this
change is Draft 7, which I think is in 2010, was posted
for public comrent.

Draft 8 makes a couple of tinkering changes.

It's posted for public conmment in 2011. It's available
to the world, and | CANN recei ves hundreds and hundreds
of comments. | cannot tell you as | sit here today if
Amazon commented on a particular issue, but | know that
Amazon was involved in the Guidebook -- they say so, in
the process | eading up to the Gui debook.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: You know it, but how can we
confirmit?

MR. LeVEE: Well, it's in the parties' respective
briefs where the parties tal k about the fact that Amazon

was aware of the drafts being issued.
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But | think Amazon's preci se awareness woul d be
beside the point. So |ong as Anazon had the opportunity
to see the drafts and to comment on those drafts and to
do sonet hing about it if Amazon thought that sonething
was wrong, then | think that's all that was required.

Here there's clearly notes, no question about
that. | can't put nyself into the shoes of the others
sitting in this roomand say, did they actually see a
draft? But drafts were posted, and there was
consi derabl e public comment on each of those drafts.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And will you in your |ater
comment s address the proposition that DCA Trust
basical ly, w thout perhaps using this |anguage,
concl udes that the bylaws trunp the Gui debook?

MR. LeVEE: [I'mgoing to. I'mgoing to do it
ri ght now.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Okay.

MR. LeVEE: | wasn't planning this sequence, but
because it has taken up so nuch of everybody's tine this
nmorning, | wanted to skip to it. So |I'm skipping to
Slide 40.

And then I"mgoing to read with you the specific
provi si ons of the DCA opinion that counsel drew your
attention to.

First, to be clear, in DCA, the GAC did issue
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consensus advice, and it did so following a single

cl osed neeting where one country spoke in favor of the
advice. The chair then asked whet her any other country
had any comments. The answer was no. And SO consensus
advi ce was issued.

We do not have any information about what
happened at that neeting except to the extent Ms. Dryden
testified to in an IRP. But the GAC had no transcript.
It had no other information. It sinply sent a
conmuni que to the board that GAC advice -- consensus GAC
advi ce was being issued.

Here we have literally the exact opposite. W
have the GAC issuing consensus advice, but it does so
followng two neetings. The first neeting where there
is no decision taken, and then there's a three-nmonth gap
in the mddle of 2013.

VWhat happens during the three-nonth gap? A |ot
of | obbying occurs. And so Amazon may not have been
permtted to speak at the GAC neetings. That is the
rule of the GAC.

But Amazon surely knew what was happeni ng. Wy
do we know? Because Amazon was | obbyi ng governnents.

"' mgoing to show you those slides, but there are a | ot
of them out of sequence.

Amazon | obbied the United Kingdom United States,
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Luxembourg, Germany. |'m going to show you those
letters after |unch.

And so Amazon was very active. They were
politically engaged. | know sonehow Judge Matz
referenced earlier the whole word "politics" seens to
have taken on a dirty meaning in society in 2017, but
the GAC is governnments. It is political and there is
negotiating. And Amazon fully knew howto try to take
advant age of that process.

And so you are right, Amazon didn't speak at the
GAC neetings, but they were very aware of what was
happening. They were | obbyi ng governnents, begging them
to stand up and oppose the GAC advi ce, because Amazon
knew the result of consensus advice would be bad for
their applications.

Al they were seeking was one governnment to bl ock
it. That's all it would have taken. And they coul dn't
get it.

| nst ead, what we have is a very open discussion.
l"mgoing to -- we're going to wal k through that exhibit
| ater today. We wal ked through it with M. Atallah
earlier yesterday where roughly 20 countries approved
t he i ssuance of GAC advi ce.

And those countries were not only countries of

South Anerica or the Cari bbean. They were countries
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t hat included Russia and China and Turkey. This was a
gl obal decision. There were 130 nenbers of the GAC.
And yes, the United States said, W' re not sure about
this, but we're not going to object.

And what ever the reason the United States had for
doing that, the bottomline is the United States knew
that if it didn't object, in all |ikelihood, no other
country woul d, and that there woul d be consensus advice.

So there's a ot that took place that Amazon was
directly involved in between the two GAC neetings. And
t hen when you have the second GAC neeting where the
advice is issued, you literally have nearly 20 countries
supporting the advice. And the NGPC nenbers knew t hat.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Do you agree that the neeting
before the Durban neeting was in Beijing?

MR. LeVEE: It was.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Ckay.

And do you agree that that was cl osed?

MR. LeVEE: | don't renenber if it was cl osed. |
think it was closed; | believe it was.
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: |'m going to accept that it

was unl ess you di sabuse nme of that before the end of the
heari ng.
MR. LeVEE: That's fine.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: The neeting in Durban was
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open, but | think you agree that the GACis a
constituent body of I CANN, correct?

MR. LeVEE: O course.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  And so Article 111, Section 1
of the bylaws would require that the GAC had procedures
that are designed to ensure fairness, right? 1t should
have procedures under that article that are designed to
ensure fairness.

And by the way, | really agree that is including
procedural fairness. Disabuse ne if it's sonething
ot her than inclusive of procedural fairness.

So the argunent is that under the bylaw Article
11, Section 1, that procedural fairness would require
t hat an applicant whose -- I'mgoing to just say an ox
is being gored, would have a right to be heard before
the GAC and/or to submt materials that are relevant to
t he debate as to whether or not GAC advice should be
gi ven.

They were denied that | think clearly in this
case. Unless you disabuse nme of that, that seens to be
the fact of the matter.

So why is it that that does not violate Article
11, Section 1 and sone precedent, by the way, of other
decisions | think that have been made by other IRP

panel s?
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MR. LeVEE: Well, first, | don't think there's
any precedent that says that. |I'mcomng to it.

Second, | don't think that procedural fairness
for the GAC neans that everybody has a right to be
hear d.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | didn't say everybody. |
said --

MR. LeVEE: O even the applicant.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: The applicant who stands to
essentially get a strong presunption against their
application if the GAC takes that advice, so that
there's material harmto that particular party. And
they're not allowed to make any presentation or say
anything or submt any materials. 1Isn't that -- that
seems to me fundanmental ly unfair

MR. LeVEE: No, | do disagree, respectfully
di sagr ee.

The GAC, as a governnental agency -- nade up of
governnents, certainly is entitled to have rules, but as
to who can speak in an orderly threshold of its
proceedings. And | think they take their cue often from
the United Nations, and | think the decision by the
GAC -- and they do have rules that in this instance
all ow people to attend but not to speak -- limting who

can speak to governnents is designed to allow only the
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governnents to speak

And if there had been a governnent that Amazon
coul d have persuaded to nake its presentation for it,
then that woul d have happened.

So Amazon tried. 1'll be showing you letters.
Amazon asked, you know, Speak on our behalf. Oppose the
consensus advi ce.

So you have an applicant that knows what's
happening. They are fully clued in, and they had the
opportunity to try to persuade governnents to their
position. The fact that they don't get to speak at the
meeting | don't think tells us that the GAC is
procedural ly unfair.

VWhat we have, then, is under the Gui debook, the
specific -- the fact that automatically, if the GAC
i ssues consensus advice, the applicant, in this instance
Amazon, is encouraged to respond. And so the response
is to the GAC advice under the Guidebook. And I think
that is extraordinarily fair and appropriate. And
Amazon took full advantage of that advice as we will see
in the papers.

And in this instance, the NGPC received multiple
additional letters and nmaterials from Amazon in response
to the Passa report, in response to the predicted NGPC

meet i ngs.
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And the board doesn't invite Amazon to come into
the board neetings either. None of the constituent
groups do that. And so | don't think it's unfair to
say, I'mgoing to hold a neeting, and I'm going to
restrict who speaks at the neeting to people who are
actually part of my group.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: M. LeVee, is there any IRP
panel ruling that discusses the application of any of
the right to be heard as a reflection of a bylaw
reference to fairness, not necessarily before GAC, but
in any other constituent body?

MR. LeVEE: Not that |'m aware of.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: You're not aware of any
precedent --

MR. LeVEE: No. The DCA decision cones closest,
and |"'mgoing to turn to it now It's argued as a right
to be heard, but | think it's incredibly distinguishable
for the reasons I wll explain. The DCA decision is the
only deci sion.

The other one that was argued this norning was
t he GCC decision on Persian Gulf, and ny next slide
after this is going to address that.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: M. LeVee, when you address
DCA, can you address page -- paragraph 109 on page 46

where it says (as read):
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"The above, conbined with the fact

t hat DCA Trust was never given any

notice or an opportunity in Beijing or

el sewhere to make its position known or

defend its own interest before" -- focus

on that -- "before the GAC reached

consensus on the GAC objection advice

and that the board of | CANN does not

take any steps to address the issue.”

MR. LeVEE: Let me do it now --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: What was the paragraph, please?

MR. LeVEE: Paragraph 109. So there are three
paragraphs in the DCA decision that, | think, we'l
reference and one in paragraph 109.

So | think the key is the words "the above."
Because what the panel discusses above is the fact that
because the neeting was cl osed and because there was --
there were e-mail exchanges that took place i mediately
in advance of the neeting that then were, according to
Ms. Dryden, ignored and because DCA tried to have
sone -- tried to have -- apparently tried to have one
country, Kenya, be able to register its opposition, sone
guestion as to why their person, why their GAC advi sor
couldn't make it to the neeting.

But he was not at the neeting, and so Ms. Dryden
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expl ai ned, Look, it's only people who were at the
nmeeting that matter. We can't take sonebody who doesn't
attend the neeting and whatever that person m ght be
saying as rel evant.

So there were a lot of things that happened in
conjunction with the GAC advice, and that's referring to
t he above, that the panel is identifying.

And then the panel does say, just as you know,
when you conbi ne all of these things that happened --
the closed neeting, the e-mail thread | eading up to the
nmeeting literally the night before, and a | ot of other
t hi ngs, when you conbined that with the fact that DCA
wasn't given an opportunity to be heard or defend its
interest and that the board didn't take any steps to
address the issue, so the board knew, or according to
t he panel should have known, that there was this
consensus advice. Nobody really understood how it had
happened.

And the testinony at the I RP proceedi ng was that
the NGPC did not ask questions about what had happened
at the GAC.

Ms. Dryden was in the room and Ms. Dryden
testified, | don't renmenmber whether anybody asked any
guestions about what had happened at the GAC

So I think the DCA panel was sayi ng when you
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conmbi ne all of those facts together, then we do concl ude
t hat the actions and inactions of the board were not
desi gned to ensure fairness.

Here, and |'m probably going to wind up getting
into it nore after lunch, there was so nuch process and
so many letters. Judge Bonner asked M. Thorne about it
earlier this norning.

What do you do with the fact that you got all of
this new information that gets communi cated and
i ncludi ng, by the way, by the applicant, but also by
Peru and by Brazil, separate letters where they talk
about the fact that they had their governnental bodies
i ssuing votes on these things, and the NGPC digesting
all of it.

And then you have M. Atallah who said, W did
sit and we did evaluate all of those things. He
actually expl ained how the board is -- all these papers
are made available to the board on a Wb site. The
board is supposed to pull them down and read them

And when you read the two board neetings, the
April 2014 nmeeting and the May 2014 neeting -- these are
exhibits | gave you yesterday and they are also in your
bi nders today -- you can't come away with any other
interpretation, that the NGPC did a | ot of thinking on

this, including thinking about the GAC advice, Amazon's

Page 344

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

interests, and all of the other constituent interests
that m ght be appropriate, and ultimtely bal anci ng
whet her Anmazon's interests, which are inportant, but the
i nterest of one conpany outweigh the effect of the GAC
advi ce which is supposed to be given, the substanti al
effect, and the GAC -- or I'msorry, the NGPC reasonably
and appropriately concluded that it did not outweigh the
GAC advi ce.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: |s that expressed, though --

| mean, is that explicit in the m nutes of the NGPC s

nmeetings? | nmean, | just didn't see it in there.
MR. LeVEE: Well, in the words that Amazon --
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | nmean, you said it quite
el oquently, but | mssed it in the m nutes.

MR. LeVEE: Well, first of all, the -- what it
says is -- and I'll quote you -- I'mgoing to take you
t hrough the docunent after lunch, but it says these are
all the things we consider.

Now, does it say, | looked at this piece of paper
and | took this fromit and | |ooked at this piece of
paper and | took this fromit? WeIlIl, no, but the
rationale itself is multiple pages -- | should say the
board resolution itself is two or three pages.

And it -- does it say the words that if | were to

wite it today, adding all the words of the argunent on
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it just may -- not every one, no. But it says a |lot of
that. And | think it is absolutely appropriate to infer
given the anount of time that was spent on this issue.

According to M. Atallah, the Amazon issue took
the entirety of the April 2014 neeting. There were
ot her agenda itens that they don't get to, and the
reason is, is because this is all they're discussing.

So you have a witness who said, W spent a |ot of
time discussing all of these issues and bal ancing the
vari ous concerns that had been expressed. | don't know
how much better | can --

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: So, M. LeVee, depending on
when we're going to take a lunch break, you can |let us
know after lunch. So I'mtrying to figure out -- | know
there's a list of all these letters and that sort of
t hi ng, but can you tell us, what were the public policy
interests that the board considered in making its
eval uation of this case on the nerits.

I n other words, what were the -- Anmzon's gone
through it -- fromyour view, what were the public
policy interests that were considered?

MR. LeVEE: | will address that right after the
[ unch.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And where is that noted in

the record?
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MR. LeVEE: | wll do that.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And then, two, you nentioned
t hat there had been so nmuch processed, a lot of letters
and everything that was appropriate, was considered by
t he board were the e-mails and sone of the things we
saw, for exanple, Exhibit 11, Exhibit 10, Exhibit 15,
Exhi bit 5.

Were those comuni cations, which | think were
just recently produced in this litigation to Amazon,
were those considered as part of this process or were
t hose outside of the process?

MR. LeVEE: According to M. Atallah, he had no
reason to believe that any of those e-mails that you
revi ewed yesterday afternoon were considered as part of
the process. That would be my answer as to that.

If I may, let me just finish on the DCA issues,
and then we'll take our lunch break. Wuld that be
okay?

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: That woul d be fi ne.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Yes.

MR. LeVEE: So in DCA you've got the GAC advice
of a single neeting based on an abbrevi at ed
i nvestigation of the NGPC. That was the evidence before
t he panel .

And here we have a ten-nonth investigation, seven
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NGPC neetings, an expert report, extensive materials
fromall of the relevant parties, and extensive debate,
debate that is -- well, we actually have transcripts and
a resolution, there's been two ot her neetings.

So the work here by the NGPC was heavily
docunent ed.

We do have Ms. Dryden's testinony, but Ms. Dryden
does testify generally in the IRP, in DCA | RP what
happened at that meeting and how the process of the GAC
works. | had no objection with any of her testinony.

She said the GAC does not issue a consensus
rationale. It didn't do so on the DCA matter. It
didn't do so here.

But her testinony did not address what happened
vis-a-vis the GAC s advice on the Amazon applications.
It was a different neeting where the advice was given
The issue of the Amazon applications was clearly not at
i ssue before the IRP panel in the DCA matter. She was
not asked any questions about the next neeting. It was
an open neeting, all these people spoke, and, of course,
you have the transcript.

So et nme go to the specific IRP. There are two
ot her paragraphs that M. Thorne brought your attention
to.

In the DCA | RP deci sion, one of themis

Page 348

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

paragraph 74. | think, actually, Judge O Brien brought
our attention to that. It says (as read):
"As previously decided by this

panel, such accountability requires the

organi zation to explain or give reasons

for its activities, set responsibility

for them and to disclose the results in

a transparent manner."

It is 100 percent clear fromthe context when you
| ook at the previous paragraphs, that the panel was not
referring to the GAC. The panel was referring to the
NGPC. There is no reference in any of this discussion
because it is tal king about what the NGPC had an
obligation to do.

The ot her paragraph that you were -- drawn
attention to was paragraph 113, which says (as read):

“I'n light of the clear

transparency obligation provisions found

in I CANN' s byl aws, the panel would have

expected the I CANN board to, at a

m ni mum investigate the matter further

before rejecting DCA Trust and

application.”

So agai n, not talking about GAC advice and what

t he GAC shoul d or should not be doing. This is talking
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about what the panel does -- I'msorry, the NGPC. And
what the DCA | RP panel found was that in the
circunstances of that case where there was GAC advi ce at
a closed neeting, no rationale, no ability to attend or
even know what was happening, that the board should have
done sonet hi ng nore.

And what happened in that case, as | nentioned,
the testinony fromthat case was that the board did a
very nodest investigation of the GAC advice. That
contrasts with the investigation that was done here.

You can agree or disagree as to the investigation
was suitably thorough, although | think the evidence is
clear that it was. But there's no doubt that the NGPC
consi dered the Amazon applications and the GAC advice
associated with themat so many neetings and with so
much activity that it truly is inpossible to say that
they did not investigate what was goi ng on.

And they say, they freely admt, W do not have a
GAC rationale, but we have a | ot of other information on
which we can rely, and we'll talk about that later.

Finally, one last slide. Then we go to |unch.
want to nmention the GCC decision. There was also a | ot
of discussion about that early this norning. Let ne
tell you what happened in GCC

The GAC was asked to i ssue consensus advice with
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respect to the Persian -- .persiangulf application, and
it was not able to do that. There was an objection.

And so the GAC issued a communi que that said, we,
guote, do not object to a Persian Gulf application
proceedi ng.

The | RP panel said, Well, do not object is not
one of the things you're allowed to do under the
Gui debook.

Under the Gui debook you're supposed to give
ei ther consensus advice -- but if you can't give
consensus advice, Mdule 3 of the CGui debook says you're
supposed to convey the full range of views expressed by
t he nmenbers to the | CANN board.

And so the | RP panel said when you said do not
object, it sounds to us as if you are saying that the
application should proceed, that you are actually
endor si ng the application.

And so the panel said, |ook, the Gui debook says
that the GAC i s supposed to convey a full range of views
if it cannot reach consensus, and you didn't do that.
And had you done that under the CGui debook and under the
byl aws, there would have been this obligation for the
board and the GAC to neet. And that's, as | said, both
under the bylaws and the GAC.

M. Atallah tal ked about it yesterday, that if
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the board isn't going to foll ow GAC advice, they have to
go tell the GAC, we're not going to follow it, and now
we want to meet with you and see if there's sone
resolution we can reach

So what the I RP panel in that case said was,
we're going to fault you, Board, for not investigating
t he GAC advi ce because the GAC advice took a formthat
was illegitinmte under the Gui debook.

It was not consistent with the range of options
of fered by the Gui debook.

Didn't say that the GAC did anything procedurally
wrong in ternms of the voting and the neeting and the
people who were present. It sinply said that when the
GAC communi cated a particular form of advice, it sounded
to the panel |ike that advice was tantanmount to you
shal |l proceed forthwith and go proceed with the
. persiangul f application. And that's not what countries
had di scussed because there was no consensus advi ce.

And so if you, the NGPC, had been follow ng the rules,
you woul d have had a discussion with the GAC.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: The GAC coul d gi ve consensus
advice for nonobjecting to an application, couldn't it?

MR. LeVEE: Under the Cuidebook, it's alittle
confusing. They -- oh, could they give consensus advice

t hat an application can proceed? Absolutely, yes. But
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what they said was, we don't have consensus advice, and
therefore, we don't object. And it was alnost |ike a
doubl e negati ve.

So those are the two -- the DCA and the GCC
deci sions were the two that you spent the npost tinme on
this nmorning. | wanted to address themfirst.

VWhen we cone back after the lunch break, 1"l

goi ng through the rest of nmy presentation in the order |

had intended and I will take you through these issues
and | will certainly address Judge O Brien's questions.
ARBI TRATOR BONNER: |'m just going to ask a final

one around what you started tal king about, and that is,
you' ve, of course, made the point that it's too late to
modi fy the Gui debook and insert that the GAC has to
state reasons or rationale.

And | think your point is that there really isn't
any precedent in I RP cases for the proposition that the
GAC is required to state a rationale or reasons for its
consensus advice. Am1l right? 1In other words, you are
saying that neither the DCA case or any other |IRP case
supports that proposition.

MR. LeVEE: Yes, | think you could argue that the
DCA deci si on has | anguage supporting that, but as |
tried to point out to you, the |language is cum -- is

the cumul ati ve effect of what happened in that case.
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| don't think you could say that the DCA deci sion
stands for the proposition that no matter what process
occurs, no matter whether you have open neetings and so
forth, the GACis -- it always nust, you know, issue a
rati onal e and do various other things.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: |'m just | ooki ng at
paragraph 74. | just wanted to make sure | understood
what your argunment is. So | thought your argunment was
that that refers to and it only applies to the NGPC or
t he board, not the GAC.

MR. LeVEE: Exactly. Well, paragraph 74
specifically applies to the NGPC. There truly is not a
way you could read that paragraph in the context of the
flow and think that the IRP panel was referring to the
GAC.

The panel was clearly referring to the NGPC.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: So the organization that's
being referred to is the NGPC or the board, the NGPC on
behal f of the board, but not the GAC?

MR. LeVEE: Yes. And all of the previous
paragraphs leading up to that, starting, really, on
page 19, the question is: D d the board act or fail to
act in a manner consistent with the articles, bylaws, or
Gui debook? And then it states the parties' respective

positions on that, and then quotes fromthe byl aws.
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ARBI TRATOR BONNER: We'll look at it all. So put
in context, that's your argunent, that it does not apply
to the GAC?

MR. LeVEE: Correct.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay. |Is the food here?

MR. LeVEE: |'msure it is because it's 12:20,
12: 25.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Are you prepared to take a
recess at this point?

MR, LeVEE: | am

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Any ot her thoughts or
questi ons?

All right. So let's recess for an hour. [It's
roughly 12:23. W'IIl resune at, let's say, 1:25.

MR. LeVEE: Thank you.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  We're in recess.

(Wher eupon, at the hour of 12:23 p.m, a

| uncheon recess was taken, the

proceeding to be resuned at 1:33 p.m)
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Los Angeles, California; Tuesday, My 2, 2017

1:33 p.m

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: We're back on the record.

M. LeVee?

MR. LeVEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

| am now going to proceed with the bal ance of ny
closing. |1'maware that when we |eft at lunch, | had
sone pendi ng questions, and | promse that | will get to
them during the course of that discussion.

But |1'm hoping that | can take you through a
sequence that m ght be useful to you. So I'mgoing to
spend a little bit of tinme on background because it
hel ps sonmewhat and then take you through the evidence as
| see it.

So just as a rem nder, in 2000, the | CANN
board -- I'"mon, by the way, Slide 4.

The board approved a very small nunber of new
gTLDs for the purpose of determ ni ng whet her new
top-1evel domai ns woul d have an adverse effect. And
then it wasn't until 2005 and through '7 that the GNSO
the Generic Names Supporting Organi zation, which was
responsible for policy in this area, devel oped the
principles that take us to where we are today.

The GNSO supported a | arge-scal e expansi on and
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t hey provided specific inplenentati on suggestions to the
board, but it was the board' s obligation to adopt the
actual rules for the program which becane the Gui debook.

So the board in 2008, after sonme back-and-forth,
went forward with the program and adopted the GNSO
policy recomrendati ons, and they knew that they had to
devel op the appropriate inplenmentati on provisions.

And that the way that that was done was through
what amounted to be about ten drafts of the new gTLD
appl i cant Gui debook issued between 2008 and 2012.

The inportant point to take away was that the
drafts were posted, every one of them for public
comrent. And | CANN woul d recei ve extensive public
comment, and then the staff of ICANN would try to
encapsul e all the coments that they had nade. And they
woul d then debate what shoul d be changed, and they would
go forward.

And from the beginning, there were concerns over
names that had a geographic meani ng or nmight have a
geographi ¢ neani ng, and that's not uncommon. And there
were |lots of other concerns. | don't want to suggest
t hat nanes that had a geographi c neani ng m ght be
i nappropri ate.

There were concerns that people would have

strings -- we discussed this a little bit during the

Page 357

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

openi ng yesterday -- that had a -- you know, an evil
meani ng or that advocated terrorismor, you know, blow
up the United States.

| CANN wanted to make sure that there were |ots of
rules in place, that there could be a process to prevent
t hose applications from proceeding in the event there
wer e concerns.

And so the Gui debook had these objection
procedures. Yesterday | kept referring to Mddule 2, and
my client rem nded ne that three of you probably aren't
as conversant in the Guidebook as | am but Mdule 2 is
where the Gui debook has its objection procedures.

And there are lots of procedures; string
simlarity is one. Judge Matz was involved in an I RP on
that. Comunity objection, objections involving
reality, and objections involving intellectual property.
There were a wide variety. And again, this was a
process that was vetted extensively with the public.

The GAC sort of let this process play out for a
while before it started to speak. And it did so
beginning in late 2010. And it had concerns that were
expressed in Exhibit 7. You have Respondent's
Exhibit 7. 1t's in the binder that | handed out to you.
And in Exhibit 7, the GAC explains that governnments

should be allowed to rai se concerns via the GAC t hat
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were separate fromthe objection procedures.

And you'll find that -- well, candidly, it's sort
of throughout, but if you | ook at the recommendati on on
page 2, the GAC wanted to have a Early WArning procedure
and they wanted to i ssue GAC advice and it wanted to
be -- I"'mgoing to read to you fromthe recomendati on.

(As read):

"GAC Early Warni ng and GAC advice

on new gTLDs can be applied to any

application, e.g., sensitive community

sector or geographic strings of any

type."

That's at the bottom of page 2.

And so the GAC said, we want to be able to issue
obj ecti ons on any of these grounds and we want to have
this concept of consensus advi ce.

So then when you | ook at page 3 where it says the
GAC advice that is -- if it's consensus advice, then
that would create a strong presunption for the board
that the application should not be approved. That's
down toward the bottom of the page.

And then on page 4, that the GAC wanted these
Early Warning and GAC advice on new ¢gTLD procedures to
be designed so that the GAC could provide input on any

application for any reason.
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So M. Atallah yesterday, during exam nation when
| asked the questions, confirned that he attended a --
what was a pretty significant neeting in Brussels where
a lot of these issues were hamrered out. And in
paragraphs 11 through 23 of his wi tness statenent, he
goes through in a fair anount of -- fair anount of
 ength why the GAC was asking for what it was asking for
and the fact that the GAC received it.

And as | said about an hour ago, what | thought
was not abl e yesterday was that M. Atallah didn't
recei ve any questions on any of that portion of his
declaration. And so we have what anounts to unrebutted
evidence with -- and there aren't any exhibits that say
that this advice -- that the recommendations fromthe
GAC were not adopted, because they were.

So the board then explained in the so-called
| aunch rationale. You have it as Exhibit R 76. If you
| ook at page 45 -- | only gave you portions of R 76
because it was so | ong.

If you | ook at page 45 at the very back, the
board explains that it has -- it had a dialogue with the
GAC and that the board has accepted the GAC advice to
requi re governnent approval in the case of applications
for certain geographic nanes.

And if you look at the one, two, three -- fourth
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bull et (as read):
"The board also confirned that the

GAC has the ability to provide GAC

advi ce on new gTLDs concerni ng any

application. Thus, governnents woul d

not be required to file objections and

participate in the dispute resol ution

process" -- that's what | was referring

to that's Mddule 2, all those dispute

resol uti on processes -- "but rather, my

rai se their concerns via the GAC. This

process could be used, for exanple, for

governnents to object to an application

for a string considered by a governnent

to be a geographic nane.”

And then the next bullet does explain the formnal
obj ecti on and di spute process does renmain available to
governnent. So a governnent could invoke the dispute
resolution provisions of -- that are -- were contained
there, but they weren't required to and that there would
be limted funding support from I CANN for filing fees
and di spute resol ution costs.

And as | nentioned yesterday, governments did
have sonme concern that if they were required to foot the

bills for all of the dispute resolution nmechanisns, that
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they'd have to get authorized funding fromtheir
| egi sl atures, and they were worried about having to do
t hat .

So | CANN gave every government one free objection
to file without a fee, but also gave the governnent the
ability to object via the GAC.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: M. LeVee, this Exhibit 76, the
report that's in the binder you gave us -- | realize
it's only part of a larger exhibit.

MR. LeVEE: Yeah.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: -- is fromthe board rationale,
right.

MR. LeVEE: It is.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And was the board rationale
posted online too?

MR. LeVEE: It was posted online, yes.

The distinction that was drawn yesterday is that
it was not nade available for public comment. And | was
about to explain why.

The board rationale is posted online, fully
avai l abl e for people to view prior to submtting their
application. So the rationale was posted in July of
2011.

| CANN was required under the then agreement with

the U S. governnent, which was called the Affirmation of

Page 362

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Comm tnments, an odd-naned docunent. | CANN was required
to have a rationale for inportant decisions. It was not
required to post the rationale for public coment.

There was nothing to comment on. This was the board
explaining to the world why it had done what it had done
following the board's recei pt of a massive anmount of
public conments.

So it is correct that there was no public coment
invited because there was no public coment needed or
none woul d have been | ogical because the board was
sinmply saying we made a decision and here's what we did.
It would be no different, | suppose, than the board
issuing a rationale that they were going to do sonething
el se with respect to an application. They do what they
do. They don't ask public in advance for conmments on an
approved board rationale.

Most inportantly, the evidence is undisputed that
t he Gui debook allows the GAC to object to any
application on any grounds, and you didn't really hear
in the last two days evidence to the contrary.

There is in the briefing considerable statenents
by Amazon that governnents through the GAC are not
permtted to address issues that were otherw se the
subj ect of dispute resolution procedures, and that's

j ust wrong.
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It's based on Heather Forrest's | egal
interpretation of her read of the Guidebook, and it's
absolutely contrary to what I1'll refer to as the
drafting of the Gui debook makes it 100 percent clear.

And then as | nentioned earlier, the deadline for
Amazon to conpl ain about what is in the Guidebook, in
our judgnent, has | ong passed as confirnmed by several
| RP panel s.

Let ne address briefly the independent objector
of the community objection. So we do have the March
2013 i ndependent objector files a community objection.

Does the panel know what an independent objector
is?

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: It wouldn't hurt to explain
it to me, anyway.

MR. LeVEE: Ckay.

So | CANN was concerned that there m ght be
applications where people objected, but the public that
was objecting m ght not have sufficient resources or --
they m ght not be a comunity that was organized in such
a fashion that they would get together and say, we need
to pay the noney to the ICCto file a objection.

And so | CANN said, we're going to have an

i ndependent objector. We'Il pay himor her. It was a
him And we will ask himto take a | ook at, are there
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public policy or other kinds of reasons why an objection
m ght be asserted against an application even though no
governnent or private entity have otherw se asserted an
obj ecti on?

So the independent objector in sone ways was
pl ayi ng center field, catching applications that m ght
hit the ground that m ght be objectionable. And he
filed a bunch of objections, and some he won and sone he
| ost.

In this instance --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: There's a person that's
appoi nted to be the independent objector?

MR. LeVEE: Yes, there was a human bei ng who was
specifically appointed.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: And -- okay. It's not
just -- so appointed for a period of tinme?

MR. LeVEE: He was appointed for asserting
obj ecti ons under the CGuidebook round that took place.
It was initiated in the spring of 2012.

So in 1930 applications, he was the independent
obj ector for those applications.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: One person who carried out that
obligation with that title.

MR. LeVEE: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And free rein to object about
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any of these.

MR. LeVEE: He di d.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: \What was the person's nanme?

MR. LeVEE: Alain Pellet, P-e-l-l-e-t --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Ckay. Now | renenber.

MR. LeVEE: -- which is escaping nmy m nd.

So M. Pellet did assert objections. Now, he --
there was a sequence in tinme, if he saw that other
peopl e were objecting, he would usually step back. But
he only asserted objections typically when soneone el se
did not.

So Amazon opposed the community objection in May
of 2013, and Amamzon argued that Brazil and Peru weren't
objecting anynore. That's in your binder, Exhibit R 63.

But by that tinme, we know that the governnents
had al ready put the matter of the Amazon applications in
front of the GAC, because in April of 2013, we know t hat
the GAC consi dered the Amazon applications. Didn't do
anything with themat that time, but they considered
t hem

And then in July of -- I"msorry, in June or
July, | can't renenber now, 2014, we know the GAC passes
consensus advice. W had a | ot of discussion on that.

And Amazon does not tell the I CC expert, Judge

Schwebel , about this. Brazil and Peru were not parties

Page 366

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

to the proceeding, so as far as the judge, the I CC
expert, knew, Brazil and Peru were not opposing. And so
nont hs after the GAC issued its consensus advice, in
January of 2014, the expert -- the |ICC expert dism ssed
t he community objection, but he did so on the m staken
belief that the governnents had withdrawn their

obj ecti ons.

Now, does any of this really matter? Probably
not because at the end of the day, so long as the ICC
determ nation doesn't nullify the GAC advice, what the
ICC did or didn't do is really not central to the panel,
| would submt.

But Amazon argues -- this is a direct quote from
their prehearing brief at page 36 (as read):

"That the procedures for

determ ning a geographic nane set forth

in the Cui debook are the exclusive

procedures for protective geographic

nanmes. "

And that's just wrong.

We know that it's wong because the Cui debook
created GAC advice as an alternative available to
governnents to comrunity objections. And the two
met hods, GAC, objection by -- through the process of a

community objection, there were two i ndependent nethods
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to objecting for an application, and neither one of them
had any precedential effect on the other.

Now, let's tal k about the objections to the
Amazon applications.

As a rem nder, Amazon submtted 76 applications.
73 of them drew no objection. Under the rules of the
Gui debook, Amazon benefited from those applications.
Their interests have been affirmed. And | can't tel
you the status of each and every one of those top-Ievel
domai ns, but .anmzon, of course, is not operating. |It's
t he subject of this proceeding.

And there's no doubt that the three Amazon
applications did pass the initial evaluation's
geogr aphi ¢ nanes revi ew because the strings are not on a
list. W don't contend that they are. W acknow edge
t hat they do not appear on any specific list.

But what al so happened, and it happened very
qui ckly, was that strong opposition to the nanes was
raised in South Anerica

Not only do we have the Early Warnings, but we
have the Montevi deo decl arati on, we have a resol ution of
opposition in the Brazilian senate, we have statenents
by ot her intergovernmental organizations. And so what
we wind up with are the GAC Early Warni ng noti ces.

| realize that | forgot to put the Early Warning
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notices in your book, and so let ne hand them out to you
separately. It already has Exhibit No. C 22. | don't
think it needs a separate hearing exhibit.

And the Early WArning notices are several pages,
and they tal k about the Amazon region constituting an
i nportant part of the territory of Bolivia and Brazil,
Col onbi a and Ecuador -- it goes on; and that granting
exclusive rights to the specific gTLD to a private
conpany woul d prevent the use of the domain for purposes
of the public interest related to the protection,
pronotion, and awareness, raising on issues relating to
the Amazon bionme. And, of course, it would hinder the
use of the nanme related to the population inhabiting the
region.

It matches the nanme in English of the Amazon
Cooperation Treaty Organi zation. And in the third
paragraph, it says (as read):

"It should be noted that the

application has not received support

from governnments of the countries in

which the region is located."

And it lists all those governnents.

| should note Bolivia, Ecuador, and Guyana were
not GAC nenbers at the tinme. They were opposing the

application, but at the tine, they were not GAC nenbers.
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But they were requesting that the application be
i ncluded as part of the Early WArning process.

Then at the bottom of the second page, there's
nore notes from Peru tal king about the history of the
Amazon region and the fact that the regi on conprises
61 percent of the territory of Peru. And on the next
page, there's a further notice fromBrazil that the
protection of geographic nanes that refer to regions
whose public interest could be affected is inportant and
whet her it's denom nated in English or otherw se, it
shouldn't be limted -- it should be in the nane of
public interest applied to future existing applications.

So the Early Warning gives a fair amount of
explanation as to the nature of the concern.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: This was included in the binder
you gave us.

MR. LeVEE: Oh, it was?

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Yeah.

MR. LeVEE: Okay. M fault.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: C 22 was i ncl uded.

MR. LeVEE: Okay. | thought it was not.

So then in April, we know that the GAC takes up
the opposition in its first meeting.

And then sonething | spoke of earlier today,

which is that in the spring and sumrer of 2013, Anazon
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| obbi ed several countries to block the GAC advice. So
if you look at Slide 13, | have one exanple. This is
for Germany. And it's in your binder, Exhibit R 67.

And very simlar letters were sent to the United
Ki ngdom Australia, and Luxenmbourg. And what Amazon
asks (as read):

"We respectfully ask you to oppose

any proposals that would give individual

GAC nenber countries the ability to veto

applications on the basis of sensitivity

wi t hout considerations of the |aws of

ot her sovereign nations.

"Accordingly, we wite to formally

request that you object to any objection

to the Amazon application in its | DM

variance. Alternatively, if you cannot

obj ect, we ask that you remain neutral."

So Amazon had the ability and did, in fact,
conmuni cate with governnents.

Returning to a question | had before |lunch, no,
they did not have the right to speak at a GAC neeti ng.

Nor, by the way, does the | CANN board give people the

right to speak at its neetings. It -- to me, it would

be no different, | suppose, than asking Congress, well,

| mght be affected by sonmething. | want to cone speak
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Well, Congress has the ability to say yes and it has the
ability to say no.

The GAC s rul es say that when we are having a
debate on the floor of the GAC, we're going to limt
t hat debate to GAC nenbers.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: What is the significance of
Amazon reaching out to the governnments? |Is it your
position that there was procedural due process because
Amazon could wite letters to various governnents and
that constitutes procedural due process?

MR. LeVEE: Yes, in part.

The -- Amazon had the ability -- Amazon knew what
was goi ng on, took advantage of the tine del ay between
the two GAC neetings to do the sanme kind of | obbying
that it was not able to do by speaking at the GAC

So yes, it had -- I'mnot arguing that those --
that that al one was procedural due fairness. And |I'm
going to return to your issue of procedural due fairness
when | get into the specifics of the byl aws, because |
don't think the procedural due fairness is actually
directed at the point you' re making.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Were the governnments that
they | obbied required to give thema hearing or to talk
to thenf

MR. LeVEE: Of course not, no. ' m not
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suggesting otherw se. These were governnents that you
woul d have expected woul d be interested in hearing from
Amazon, including the United States.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: The Irani ans?

MR. LeVEE: |'m skeptical of them

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Representee and tal k about
it?

MR. LeVEE: Probably not. But |I would expect
Luxenmbourg, where they are incorporated. | would expect
the United States, where they sent letters to Congress,
asking Congress to |look into the situation.

| woul d expect Amazon to do what it felt was in
its best interests, recognizing that there was a
political issue because governnents were involved, and
Amazon engaged, as you woul d expect it as a for-profit
entity to try to engage, to get -- to | obby those
governments.

My point is sinmply that the option was avail abl e
toit, and it took advantage of that option. And |
think that it becomes rel evant because what | ater
happens is that none of those countries is willing to
bl ock the consensus advice, and that we know.

But we didn't know before these proceedi ngs the
extent to which Amazon tried to prevent that result.

And Amazon had the right to do so. Had it been
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successful with any of those countries, we would not be
here today.

So we also know that the United States issued its
st atenment on geographic names. |It's Exhibit C 34.

M. Thorne also presented on it in his opening. And the
United States ultimtely decided that it was in the best
interests of the United States to not object and to

all ow the GAC to present consensus advice on these
issues if no other --

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: |I'msorry to interrupt you
one nore tinme. | think that |ast answer was extrenely
hel pful, at least to nme, in kind of clarifying things.

So it's your position that we wouldn't be here
today if one governnment had stood up and bl ocked the
consensus advice, correct?

MR. LeVEE: We woul d not have had consensus
advice. There's no way for ne to know whet her the GAC
woul d have then sent to the board what the GCC panel
said they should have done. W can't get to consensus
advice. Here's the range of views we need to talk to.

| can't predict how that would have worked out.
| think we are here today because of consensus advi ce.
"' m not disagreeing with the discussion you had with
M. Atallah yesterday.

It was because of the consensus advice that the
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board ultimately did what it did.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Because ot herw se, there
wasn't the basis for the gTLD, correct?

MR. LeVEE: | don't know that | would say that.
| would say that if the board had had non-consensus
advice fromthe GAC, the type of which the GCC panel had
encour aged, the board then would have had to engage in a
nmeet and confer, at least that's what | call it as a
litigator. And | can't predict what the outconme would
have been.

The outconme could have been that the board woul d
have said, you know what? W are persuaded. W are not
going to let that application proceed.

| would agree that if the GAC had not spoken at
all, then the board |likely would not have had a reason
to evaluate the string just as it didn't eval uate
.1 pi ranga.

And when there's no objection and no GAC advice
of any kind, consensus or non-consensus, the
applications typically were not brought to the board's
attention.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Is that explanation a little
nore nuanced than M. Atallah's testinony that we heard
yest erday?

MR. LeVEE: No. | think, actually, M. Atallah
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spoke directly to you about the fact that the board had
this nmeet and confer obligation. | don't knowif he did
it in the context of this question, but he did talk
about that.

And | don't think there's any way for people
sitting in this roomto know what woul d have happened if
t he GAC had issued non-consensus advi ce, because the
byl aws require the board to then nmeet and confer with
the GAC. And | don't see how any of us could have
predi cted how that outcome would have pl ayed.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN:  Thank you.

MR. LeVEE: So then in July of 2013, we have the
actual GAC neeting. W have two different exhibits that
relate to that nmeeting, C 38 and C 40.

C 38 -- so there were -- sonething that | was a
little confused about. There were actually two neetings
at the GAC that consider the advice.

In C 38 you will see that the GAC considers the
advice, but they do so beginning -- sorry. | didn't
have the tab. [|I'mgoing to have to conme back to it.

The GAC considers the advice, but they agree that
they are going to talk about it nmore in a couple of
days.

And so if you look at C 40, this is the portion

that | took you through -- took M. Atallah through
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yesterday where | pointed out all of the various things
t hat people said and all of the countries that supported
t he advi ce.

And so | want to take you through in a little bit
nmore detail what Peru actually did. W know that Peru
said as one of the reasons for its objection that
.amazon appeared on a list, and we know t hrough
M. Atallah that Peru was wrong.

But if you ook at Slide 15 -- these are actually
direct quotations from Exhibit 38 -- Peru summarized its
basis for objecting, that the 2007 GAC principles state
that I CANN' s core values indicate that the
organi zation -- that's I1CANN -- while remaining rooted
in the public sector, recognizes that governnents and
public authorities are responsible for public policies
and should take into account governnents and other --
governance and public authority recomendati ons.

And on that topic --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Stay with that topic for a
nmonment, but |I'mgoing to -- the chair is going to need a
little conveni ence recess here. Five m nutes.

MR. LeVEE: O course.

Let's take a break as | ong as you need.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Fi ve-m nute recess.

(Recess.)
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ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay. | think we can go back
on the record.

MR. LeVEE: Thank you.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: M. LeVee?

MR. LeVEE: | need to clarify sonmething | said.
| kept referring to the rejection procedures being in
Modul e 2. They are actually in Mdule 3, which is where
the GAC advice is. | got carried away. Sonething el se
that 1've been working on is in Mddule 2, so |
apol ogi ze.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  You coul d have fool ed us.

MR. LeVEE: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: You did fool us.

MR. LeVEE: | did fool you, and now |I'm feeling
bad.

What | just handed out is a very short piece of
Exhi bit C 64, which is the Gui debook.

Peru had nentioned on Slide 15 that they think,
you know, the governnments and the nenbers of GAC are the
peopl e that should be speaking on public policy. Wat I
wanted to point out is this is straight out of the
byl aws.

| CANN s byl aws have what are called core val ues,
and they are all listed in Article I, Section 2. And

this is not one of the ones that Amazon had identified
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inits sheet. And Core Value 11 states (as read):
"Whil e remaining rooted in the

private sector, recogni zing that

governnents and public authorities are

responsi ble for public policy and duly

taki ng i nto account governnments for

public authorities' recomendations.”

So it's actually part of ICANN's mssion, its
charter, as stated in its bylaws, that although I CANN is
a public -- is a private organization, it does need to
recogni ze the interests of governnments and public
authorities and that they are the ones that are the
specialists in public policy.

And | think it's inportant because there have
been a lot of questions as to the extent to which | CANN
shoul d be second-guessing the public policy decisions.

And what M. Atallah told you yesterday was that
the board was not confortable putting itself in the
shoes of different governments. |If the |egislature of
Brazil speaks and acts and passes information that gets
passed al ong to | CANN about what is in the best
interests of the people of Brazil, it would -- I CANN s
board woul d be hard-pressed to know better or to know
the information that they received on public policy was

wr ong.
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And | think that that's a very -- it's a
difficult issue because, of course, you want the board
to be able to consider all the facts. But when it cones
to public policy issues, there's an appropriate
def erence.

Returning to Slide 15, these are all of the
t hi ngs that Peru said as recorded in Exhibit C 38, and
that, you know, the GAC principles add that | CANN should
abi de by country, territory, or the descriptions unless
the rel evant governnments or authorities disagree, and in
the context of approved principles, there's a clear
basi s that support our position as governnent.

And then Peru goes on. So there's the second
meeting, which is Exhibit C 40. And Peru goes on, and
it gives -- it gives three reasons for why it's
objecting to the .amzon.

The first is that they think that it's
appropriate. There are enough |l egal grounds in the
byl aws and in prior GAC advice, in the CGui debook. There
are |l egal grounds for the request. They don't say what
they are, but they think that they are appropriate.

The second is that they do say that Amazon is on
the 1 SO 3162-2 list, and they were w ong.

And then the third remark, and this is the one |

want to inpress upon you. They say (as read):
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"This is indeed a public interest

i ssue. That is why we are discussing

this in the GAC. There are several

popul ati ons that have been involved in

this, and I want stress the fact that

unani nously, all Amazon countries and

all Amazon provinces, departnents, and

| ocal governnments have expressed in

writing their objection to .amazon."

So Amazon has argued throughout that because Peru
mentions the use of the |list and because that's w ong,
that Peru's statenent should be ignored. But while we
agree that Peru's statenment should be ignored, there's
no indication that the board thought that .anmazon was on
some list. And there's no indication that anybody el se
t hought that .amazon was on sone |ist.

To the contrary, as | explored with M. Atall ah
yesterday, Australia gave a |ong discussi on about how it
| ooked |Ii ke we had a situation where that was falling
t hrough the cracks because it wasn't on the list, but
countries wanted to object and what do we do.

And so at the end, the GAC chair called for
formal objections to the advice and no one offered one.
So that is not in dispute any |onger.

And this is the classic definition of consensus
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advice, and | don't hear Amazon arguing any |onger that
there's not consensus advice. They do argue it in their
briefs.

And so once the chair says, |I've heard from al
of you countries, the tine is nowif you want to object,
and nobody does. And so the GAC has reached consensus.

So what happens after that? 1In July of 2013,
Amazon is invited to respond, and it does. And as we
know, they submtted a 316-page response, which is
Exhibit C 43. And they make three argunents.

Now, | want to note one thing. None of those
argunents made then was that the GAC didn't issue a
witten rationale or a consensus rationale. |Instead,
what they argue is that the GAC advice is contrary to
i nternational | aw because they think that the advice is
rooted in the concept that Brazil and Peru think that
they have a legal right to the nane.

Second, that there's been discrimnation.

And third, that Amazon followed the rules, and so
Amazon shoul d be approved because they had won the
conmuni ty objection.

So in the fall of 2013, the NGPC, the first tinme
it considers the application says, well, we're going to
get Jerone Passa to actually look into this |Iegal issue.

Amazon had attached -- one of the reasons that C
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43, this Amazon response, is so long is that Amazon had
actually attached chapters of Heather Forrest's book --
there's two Heathers. And Anmazon attached chapters of
Heat her Forrest's book saying, you know, nobody -- no
governnent is lawfully entitled to a nane.

And M. Passa agreed with that. And he al so
said, Well, | don't think Amazon is automatically
entitled to the nane either, so it's a draw

So on Slide 19, we're now into the year 2014.
The NGPC gets additional subm ssions from Amazon and
Peru. In March of 2014, it gets additional Passa -- it
gets the Passa analysis and invites Amazon and Brazi
and Per u.

In April of 2014, the NGPC gets the responses.
And then we have the two neetings: April 29 and May 14
of 2014.

| took you through these neetings yesterday, so |
don't want to bel abor the point, but it's a very
i nportant point. And | want to run through the
rati onal e because there was a | ot of questions about it
earlier.

Exhibit R 31 is the m nutes of the board neeting
of April 29, 2014.

And as M. Atallah said yesterday, there were a

nunber of itens on the agenda, and we only nanaged to
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prepared in particul ar

get to one of them the GAC advice update. \Which was

f ocused on .anmzon.

At the bottom of page 2 (as read):
“"Chris Disspain, an NGPC board
menber, outlined potential alternatives
for the commttee to discuss the GAC s
advi ce and what next steps we have to
do. Menbers of the commttee weighed in
the relative nmerits and di sadvant ages of
various options to address the GAC
advi ce. "
I n the next paragraph (as read):
"The comm ttee di scussed whet her
there were opportunities for the
rel evant inpacted parties to engage in
addi ti onal discussion."”
And then in the next paragraph (as read):
"The comm ttee consi dered
correspondence and comments submtted by
the inpacted parties throughout the

process."

That there was -- sonme of the responses had been

I nformati on.

And Chris Disspain asked whet her any additional
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informati on would be hel pful to the commttee as it
continued its deliberations on the matter, and the

comm ttee consi dered whet her additional information was
needed. And then in the next paragraph, they tal k about
what the GAC advice means and so forth.

And then if you turn to the next page --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: You are going pretty fast.
What page are you on now?

MR. LeVEE: | apol ogize. |I'mon page 4.

The second paragraph (as read):

"The comm ttee anal yzed whet her

the inpacted parties would benefit from

havi ng additional tine. Sonme nmenbers

noted that a considerable of tinme

el apsed. "

And basically, | think what the commttee was
doi ng here was they were calling the question because
this had been going on for a while.

We do not have in these mnutes every single item
t hat was di scussed. W know from M. Atallah that the
Amazon applications took the entire nmeeting. | forgot
to ask himhow |l ong the neeting |asted.

But this is a board that is deliberating
t horoughly and carefully. And | think these m nutes

make that cl ear. VWhat makes it even npre clear is when
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you then go to Exhibit R 83.

So this is the neeting mnutes fromthe May 14,
2013 | CANN/ NGPC neeting. And when you | ook at the --
t he board passes the resolution, and now I'm at the
bottom of page 7 -- actually, in the mddle. The board
then issues the rationale for a decision.

And the board says, we've got these applications.
And in the next paragraph, the action being approved is
to accept the GAC advice. And the GAC advice is
entitled to a strong presunption; let's rem nd oursel ves
of that.

And then if you carry over to page 8, there's a
di scussi on of process. The board posted the GAC advice,
and so it got a response from Amazon. It |ists what the
response said. And then it indicated in the next
paragraph that the board decided to retain M. Passa to
give an expert analysis on the |egal issues.

And then if you turn to page 9, it lists,
begi nning on that page. It says (as read):

"I'n response to the 7 April 2014

comruni cation to the GAC and Amazon,

| CANN received rel ated correspondence. "

And it notes it got a letter fromthe vice
mnister of foreign affairs of Peru. It got a letter

fromthe director of the departnent of scientific and
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technol ogi cal thenes and m nistry of external relations

fromBrazil. It got a letter from Scott Hayden

Amazon.

of

And then | really want to enphasi ze the next

paragraph. It says (as read):

"The NGPC consi dered severa
significant factors during its
del i berati ons about how to address the
GAC advi ce concerni ng Anmazon and rel at ed
| TNs. The NGPC had to bal ance the
conpeting interest of each factor to
arrive at a decision.

"The concerns raised by the
rel evant parties highlight the
difficulty of the issue. And then there
are a lot of factors that the NGPC found

to be significant."

And it goes on to list them The first one is

that they had the GAC Early Warning which | just

you a significant portion of.

r ead

In the second bullet, they note that they had

correspondence from Amazon, and Amazon expl ains

why it

t hi nks the GAC got it wong or shouldn't have taken the

advice that it gave.

And in the third bullet, the NGPC consi dered what
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its job is here. Then it says very bottom of page 10
(as read):
"As part of its deliberations, the

NGPC s review of significant materials

I ncluded, but is not limted to the

following letters, materials, and

docunents. "

And it lists those letters and docunments goi ng on
for a page and a half, and it's small font. And as |
noted with M. Atall ah yesterday, about four or five of
t hose pieces of correspondence are from Amazon.

Now, it does not tell us nore, but it tells us a
lot. It tells us that the board was thorough, that it
had a ton of information in front of it. It doesn't
i ndi cate any other information that anybody w shed to
provi de or could have been provided. It shows a board
doi ng what a board is supposed to do.

The board did not have, as we've already
di scussed, a consensus rationale or any rationale from
the GAC, but it had through the Early Warnings, from
letters, and from statenents by the governnments and
their legislatures, it had a consi derabl e amunt of
information as to what the public policy concerns were
of those countries.

So | cannot say definitively what public policy
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interests the board addressed, if any, but the board had
public policy concerns of Brazil, Argentina, Peru, and a
| ot of other countries. And if it deferred to those
public policy interests, it was absolutely appropriate
for the board to do so.

The board woul d not know better than the
countries that were articulating public policy concerns
that affect their constituents.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Doesn't that make the GAC,

t hen, the decision-maker as to whether or not an
application is going to be approved or rejected?

MR. LeVEE: No.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: If you say you are going to
defer to the GAC when its consensus advice as to whet her
or not there is a valid legitimte public policy effort?

MR. LeVEE: No. And I think you and M. Atallah
had a colloquy on that yesterday that was enlightening.
You asked, Well, what if the only basis on which the GAC
had i ssued advice was Peru's statenment that the name was
on the list and now we know that that's wong? So
suppose that had happened.

M. Atallah said, Well, then we would have wound
up in a dialogue with the GAC because we woul d have
rejected the GAC advice and we woul d have had to neet

and confer with the GAC, which is obligated under the
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bylaws, and I think in this instance under the
Gui debook.

So | think the line that you' re having trouble
drawing is, well, it looks as if once the GAC says so,
it's not a strong presunption; it's a nonrebuttable
presunption. | think that's w ong.

It's a strong presunption, as it should be. And
at that point, the board has to balance all of the other
conpeting factors and interests that cone into play.

M. Atallah couldn't -- it was very hypothetical,
sone of the questions that he got as to what ni ght have
ti pped the bal ance the other way. But there certainly
coul d be situations where the bal ance does get tipped
and where the board says, |'mnot confortable with the
GAC advice. W need to talk to the GAC as to how we are
goi ng to proceed because we have an obligation under our
governi ng docunents to do so.

So no, | don't think the effect of GAC advice,
consensus GAC advice is to create anything other than
the strong presunption.

And what's odd here is that it -- sonmehow | CANN
which is, in essence, the beneficiary of the strong
presunpti on because it followed the strong presunption,
seens to be asked to have the burden to defend the

strong presunption and the acceptance of a strong
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presunption, which | think is backwards.

I think Amazon shoul d have the burden to
denonstrate that there were -- that the NGPC should have
done sonething different given what it had received --
all it had was what it had received -- and gi ven what
the actual facts are on the ground.

The argunents that had been made so far -- 1'1]I

finish ny sentence and then I'lIl -- the argunments that
have been made so far are basically, well, Peru got it
wrong -- but what |'ve just taken you through was that

there was |lots to Peru's substance other than the one
piece -- and a laundry |ist of governnents saying things
t o | CANN.

And then the question becones, well, what did
| CANN have in the bal ance to outwei gh public policy
concerns of these governnents? W do have Amazon's
interests and they were taken into account, but does the
private interest of Amazon outwei gh the public interest
of the GAC? And the board said no, there's a strong
presunpti on we don't have enough.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Okay. | follow you on that,
but let's say -- so | think M. Atallah either agreed or
he woul d agree, perhaps you would agree, that if the
only public policy reason that underlay or underlied the

GAC advice was that Peru's assertion that it was a
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| i sted geographic nanme was wong, then you would have
rejected the GAC advice even though there was a strong
presunpti on because the only reason given was not a
valid public interest reason, correct?

MR. LeVEE: | think that's what woul d have
happened.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Ckay. So | kind of scoured
the record here, and I"'mtrying to figure out what the
public policy reasons are.

There's another public policy reason that was
stated by Peru and | think by Brazil and that is that
nei t her one of them or both of them had a | egal or
sovereign right to the name "Amazon," and that's not
right either, at least if we follow Dr. Passa's report
that there is no right under international |aw of a
governnent to the nane.

So that wasn't right.

Then there's the assertion that the public policy
interest is that -- and I'"'mtrying to i magi ne who this
woul d be, but an NGO or sone other association would
want to use the name "Amazon" in the future for purposes
of perhaps protecting the Amazon bione or the Amazon
people's culture, and they are going to be deprived of
t hat because .amazon woul d be taken.

And that doesn't seemto be a reason al one,
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standing alone to -- public policy reason to deny the
application.

Am | right or wong?

MR. LeVEE: Well, first of all, the country of
Brazil thinks that you're wong because they asserted
t hat exact objection.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Doesn't the Gui debook say
that that's not a material reason for denying an
application, in essence, that in the future, sonebody
who m ght decide they want it in the future is deprived
of the string?

MR. LeVEE: Well, | don't think that, no -- yes
and no. That was not the only thing that Brazil said on
t hat subj ect.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: No, | know that, but I'm
limting it. | realize |I'mparsing it out now, and you
m ght want to repackage it. But parsing it out under
t he Gui debook, that does not appear to be a valid public
policy reason under the I CANN s own rules for denying
t he application.

MR. LeVEE: So | guess because |I'm not accepting
the question as you frame it, |I'mhaving trouble with
it.

The question as you frane it is limted to the

possibility that someone m ght apply for .amazon out of
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that region in the future. That's not the |anguage
you're quoting at all.

There are people who live in those regions who
m ght be affected by the applications and m ght -- and
woul dn't be able in the future to be associated with
themin some way.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let ne just read back on
page 10, R 83. This is the reasons given by -- this is

by the NGPC.

There are two reasons -- there are only two
reasons given that -- public policy reasons that | can
see here.

One is reference to the Early Warning, and the

reference to the -- it says, |I'mquoting (as read):
"It would prevent the use of this

domai n for purposes of public interest

related to the protection or pronotion,

awar eness, et cetera, of the Amazon

bi one or hinder the ability of the

popul ati on or sonebody acting on behal f

of the population fromusing that nane."

So that's No. 1. And the other one is that --
the only other one that | see here -- and | want you to
point out if there's sone additional public interest or

public policy reasons. Right belowthat it refers to
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the Early Warning that -- in which either Peru or Brazi
or both of themindicated that the string, Amazon, would
mat ch part of the name in English of the Amazon
Cooperation Treaty Organi zation.

Anyway, first of all -- | guess there are two
guestions. One, are there any other public policy
reasons that the NPGC cites that woul d support the GAC
advice, other than those two things? And then in
whi chever order, the very first one appears to be an
invalid assertion of a valid public policy reason in the
sense that if the only reason for denying the -- if the
only thing that underlines the GAC advice, that the only
reason were that it would prevent sonebody in the future
fromusing that nane, that appears to be an invalid
reason, and you're saying no. And go ahead. | want to
hear that.

MR. LeVEE: You are confusing -- probably because
| brought you there.

You are confusing the objection process for
community -- for geographic strings with the GAC
process.

So when Judge Schwebel, who adjudicated the
geographi c objection, when he listed the factors for a
communi ty objection under Mddule 3, one of the factors

that he listed was that it is not appropriate to block a

Page 395

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

nane because soneone el se m ght want to use the nane in
the future

Not hi ng about that applies to GAC advice. That's
part of a different portion of the Gui debook relating to
the factors that would be considered in conjunction with
a nanme that -- as to which there's a geographic
obj ecti on.

So when Judge Schwebel of the | CC adjudicated
.amazon, he said, Well, the fact that people m ght want
to apply for .amazon in the future, I"mnot going to
credit that. They could have applied today and they
didn't so they are out.

But that sanme objection is not a basis to not
give -- | gave you a double -- let ne start over.

The sanme basis would be appropriate for the GAC
to be able to say, we have a public policy concern
because this nanme is the nane of a huge area of our
region that has -- takes up a huge part of our country.
And we have people who may wi sh to use the nane.

And t hen when you | ook through the GAC Early
War ni ng, which we have wal ked t hrough, you know, it's
sayi ng we have these people, we have these resources,
and if you give the name exclusively to sonebody el se,
you are going to hinder the protection, pronotion, and

awar eness raising of issues related to the Amazon buyer.
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That's a public policy concern.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Because they will not be able
to use the nane .amazon in the future. That's the clear
indication of it. And, look, it may be that, you know,
the rule applies not to -- the rule applies to community
obj ections, but it doesn't apply to GAC advice. | nean,
that's really what you're saying. It just doesn't apply
to GAC advi ce.

MR. LeVEE: | understand.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN:. Can | junp in, Judge?

I think we are going down a road here. | think
t hings got conflated here, and certainly |I'm not
suggesti ng, Counsel, that you intended that. But |
think we all agree that the GAC did not have any
rationale for its decision, correct?

MR. LeVEE: The GAC as a GAC did not issue a
stated rational e.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Zero rationale fromthe GAC

MR. LeVEE: Did not state one, correct.

ARBl TRATOR O BRIEN: Did not state one, zero
rational e.

The only rationale that we have -- and so when
you are tal king about GAC advice and we're | ooking at
Exhibit R 83, you are sinply tal king about statenents

from Peru and Brazil, correct?
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THE WTNESS: |'m | ooking at what the NGPC | ooked
at .

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN:  And what they | ooked at
specifically was from Brazil and from Peru, not fromthe
GAC. This is not GAC advice, correct?

MR. LeVEE: They say in considering the GAC
advice, we don't have a rationale, and so we're going to
| ook at ot her things.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Right. And so when they're
| ooking at other things, that is not GAC advi ce.

MR. LeVEE: That's correct, because we don't know
what the GAC advice was based on because they didn't
i ssue a rationale.

ARBlI TRATOR OBRIEN: So is a statenent froma
country entitled to the sanme deference as GAC advi ce?

MR. LeVEE: Here's what you have, is a sequence.
We know three things. W know that Brazil and Peru were
t he ones responsi ble for causing the GAC advice to be
put forward.

We know that the GAC did not issue a rationale.

We know that the GAC advice is entitled to a
strong presunption.

And fourth, we know that the GAC has no
obligation to issue a reason, and it fought against the

obligation to do so in the CGui debook.
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In that scenario, | think the board was
100 percent reasonable in relying on statenments from
Brazil and Peru that were not formal GAC advice, but
that the board could reasonably believe were matters
t hat the GAC consi der ed.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: That's very different.
Matters that the GAC considers is very different
because, for exanple, we've got the U S. statenment on
its abstention --

MR. LeVEE: Yes.

ARBI TRATOR OBRIEN: -- in which it specifically
di sagreed with this very advice that's com ng from
Brazil and fromPeru. And | don't see any reference
here to the U S. abstention.

Did the board consider the U S. abstention which
directly contradicted the advice that you're elevating
in this argunment to GAC advi ce? Because | don't see it
in the order. Maybe they considered it and just deci ded
not to include it in the order.

I s that anywhere in the record?

MR. LeVEE: | know that the board did, and I'|

explain why. When | net with M. Atallah on Friday as

part of our prep session, | asked himthat question.
MR. THORNE: Your Honor, |'m going to object
to -- I'"'msorry, Judge Bonner, |I'mgoing to object to
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hearsay. And if this goes on, | may have sonme questions
for M. LeVee about the other things he |l earned from
M. Atall ah.

MR. LeVEE: Why don't | say it this way. | know
t he answer to your question. It is hearsay. | further
acknow edge M. Atallah is not here. And it's not
l'isted.

There was a consi derabl e anount of notoriety
associated with the fact that the United States issued
was it issued, the statenent that it issued. And |
think we reference sonme of that in our brief, but I
don't -- | did not ask M. Atallah that question
yesterday, so | won't tell you what he --

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And so the U S. statenent
woul d have as much wei ght as any statenent from Brazi
or Peru, correct?

MR. LeVEE: It could, but the U S. didn't object,
which is the ultimte.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: So legislative history, in
trying to determ ne what the GAC consensus was, only is
valuable if it cones fromthe objector?

MR. LeVEE: No, |I'mnot saying that. | think
what the U S. did was relevant, and | think people were
aware of it.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And it nay be one of the
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reasons that there was not advice that cane with the GAC
obj ection, correct? Because the U S. may not have
abstained if the GAC tried to adopt Peru or Brazil's

obj ection, correct?

MR. LeVEE: | think your specul ation would be no
better or worse than m ne, candidly.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And that speculation is the
sane speculation that's here with respect to trying to
el evate Peru and Brazil's objections to the I evel of GAC
advice. Because it just isn't GAC advice, is it?

MR. LeVEE: It's not GAC advice nor do | think
it's speculation. As | said, the NGPC knew t he
countries that were behind the GAC advice and received
information fromthose countries.

VWhen the Passa report was issued, the NGPC sent
the report to Amazon, Brazil, and Peru. It wanted the
t houghts of those three: two governnments and one
private entity. It knew who the players were, and it
sought consi derable information fromthose players.

And Brazil and Peru were, just as Amazon was,
| obbying information to the board regularly. Every tine
there was sonme event, Brazil, Peru, and Amazon woul d
send nore thoughts to the board.

So | agree with you insofar as | cannot say what

the GAC s specific rationale was. Never been able to
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say that. And Ms. Dryden was not interested in
testifying, apparently, because she didn't respond to ny
e-mail. So | can't give you evidence of that.

But | disagree with you as to whether it's
reasonabl e for the board, know ng where the GAC advi ce
cane from to ook to the two countries that clearly
were the spirit behind the advice and were communi cati ng
with the board regularly for their thoughts. And that's
what the board had in front of them

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: Let ne ask you one fina
guestion on that issue, and that is on this issue of
deference, because the GAC advice cones with a strong
presunption, correct?

MR. LeVEE: (Moves head.)

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: Does an individual nmenber
state's objection in an alert or a statenent in a letter
to ICANN or to the board, is that entitled to the sanme
| evel of deference, a strong presunption, that GAC
advice is?

MR. LeVEE: Not under the CGuidebook, no.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: 1'd like to follow up on the
very interesting and useful distinction that M. O Brien
drew between a basis emanating from GAC that nay or may
not be reflected in Exhibit 83 and one that cones

directly fromthese two governnents of Brazil and Peru.
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I"'ma little puzzled by what | understand you to
have been saying in response to this useful colloquy,
because at the bottom of page 9 of Exhibit 83, there is
a flat-out recognition that the NGPC doesn't have the
benefit of the rationale relied upon by the GAC in
issuing its consensus advice, but there can be no doubt
that it understood what the consensus advice was.

And if you ook at -- and it's repeated
el sewhere. If you look at the itens |listed on page 11
of this docunment, they heard from GAC. They got the GAC
Early Warning, the GAC Beijing comuni que, the GAC
Dur ban conmuni que, the GAC Buenos Aires comruni que, the
GAC Si ngapore communi que, and then they also |isted
things they got from Amazon and maybe Peru, |'m not
sure.

So are you view ng Exhibit 83 as containing no
basis to know what GAC s position was and, therefore, no
basis to attach any possible presunption?

MR. LeVEE: No. What I'm-- I'"mactually arguing
to the contrary but perhaps doing a poor job.

| think, particularly based on sone of the
provi sions you just cited, | cannot say to you that the
GAC i ssued a rationale.

That was the first subject in the colloquy.

| ndeed, the GAC negotiated and insisted on its
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ability not to do that. So we have that.

So a board, the I CANN board -- | think the NGPC
can't say, well, the GAC didn't issue a rationale.
We're going to throw it out. Because the board knew

that the GAC had no obligation to state a rationale.

I nstead, the board had all of this other
informati on di ssem nated by the governnents that were
behi nd the GAC advi ce.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Let ne put the question sinply.
s the presunption to which all three of us are trying
very hard to foc- -- on which we are all trying to
focus, does the presunption arise out of rationale or
does it arise out of the giving of a consensus or
consensus advice? Those two things may be the sane.

MR. LeVEE: It arises out of the GAC advice,
peri od, end of story.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And was the GAC advice as
contained in this Exhibit 83 before the board?

MR. LeVEE: Yes, it was.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And so is it your position that
the presunption would be applicable --

MR. LeVEE: Absol utely.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: -- regardless of what weight we
give or not give to it?

MR. LeVEE: Absolutely. | don't think anybody is
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really disagreeing. There was GAC advice. It is
entitled to the strong presunption. The question is:
What do you do with GAC advise that doesn't have |ots of
additional things attached to it fromthe GAC?

And | think it's reasonable for the board to take
what all of the countries said, the countries that were
| eadi ng the charge at the GAC, to take what they said,
which they said nultiple times over the course of a
ni ne-nonth period, spring of 2013 through -- really, an
11-nmonth period through the -- April of 2014. Kept
sending letters, kept sending conmuni ques. There was
the Early Warning. | think the board knew clearly what
was going on, what the rationale --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: So you see that there is a
rel evant distinction between sonething that would be
deened a rationale on one hand and sonething that is

classified as an advice consensus on the other?

MR. LeVEE: |'mnot sure what you nean by advice
consensus.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: | mean whatever is referred to
in this document. On page 9, it says (as read):

"The NGPC consi dered severa
significant factors during deliberations
about how to address the GAC advice

concerni ng Amazon."
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MR. LeVEE: Correct.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: That's what | understood the
board was consi deri ng.

MR. LeVEE: It was considering the GAC advice.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: And it distinguished the GAC
advice froma rationale and found that there was no
rational e before it to consider.

MR. LeVEE: It says exactly that in first bullet.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: In fairness to M. Thorne, when
you have your opportunity to speak again to us, | would
wel come you addressing whether it's your client's view
that the clainmed difference that M. LeVee is pointing
to between sonething deened a rationale and sonet hi ng
that was referred to in the docunent as the advice has
any licks (verbatim for purposes of the applicability
of the presunption.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: By the way, | think

under stand what you are saying, which is -- and, by the
way, |'m sure ny coll eagues do too.
ARBI TRATOR MATZ: ' m not sure.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: I1t's when you don't have any
rational e given by the GAC. There is no -- there is
consensus advice, but there's no rationale or reason,
public policy or any other reason given by the GAC for

objecting to the string.
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Then the board,

shoul d | ook for

i nterest that supports,

presunpti on.

policy reason in your

| ot of trouble right

sonet hi ng t hat

It's not --

the NGPC, is saying, well, we

m ght be a public policy
because it's only a strong

if you didn't have any public
record, | think you would be in a

now because it's only a

presunption. It's not a conclusive presunption.
And so the board does refer to, and | think
| ogically, to whatever it had, and what it had was two
principal countries who had stated objections and, to
sonme degree, stated sone reasons for their objections.
By the way -- a lot of their objections, by the
way, are, we object because we object. But there are

occasionally a glimrer of a public policy reason

suggested in the Early Warnings. And | understand that.

So it would give -- theoretically, it would give

at | east sone basis for -- and you m ght want to think

about this, M. Thorne, yourself because |I think it

m ght be if there is a valid and legitimte public

policy interest that the NPGC was | ooking at, that would

go along with the presunption and m ght be enough to

carry the day, assuming -- you know, I'm not rejecting

every ot her argunent that's been nade here, but assum ng

arguendo, that there doesn't have to be a statenent of

policy reasons or rationale.
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So there are a couple of things suggested, and to
me, one of the inportant issues is, is there one or nore
valid public policy reasons stated such that the board
could rely on it and not sinply defer to Brazil and
Peru?

MR. LeVEE: And |I'mgoing to cover that in sonme
of the upcom ng slides.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: And you're saying the deni al
of the .amazon string in the future, to sonme un- -- yet
unknown entity, an NGO, that m ght want to assist in
protection of the environnment of the Amazon or the
cultural issues with respect to the people that popul ate
the Amazon region is a sufficient public policy reason
for the denial of the application?

MR. LeVEE: Definitely.

|"'mgoing to try to run through the rest of ny
slides. Please continue to interrupt because it's
focusing on the issues, | think --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: We thought it was only fair,
you know, if you got a few questions yourself.

MR. LeVEE: And I'mgoing to skip a few because |
know | need to | eave some extra tinme.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: No, go ahead. Go back to
your presentation.

MR. LeVEE: On Slide 21, |I'mjust noting what
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conmes out of the bylaws as to why we are here. W are

in an i ndependent review process which applies to board
actions, any person materially affected by decision or

action by the board.

And nmy point is that -- in the second bullet,
which is that we are not here to deci de whether the GAC
acted consistently with anything. W are sinply here to
deci de whether the board did not.

Certainly, the board had an obligation to | ook at
t he GAC advice, to consider all of the issues. But |IRPs
do not cover any of the other subsidiary organizations
other than .org and, in this instance, the NGPC.

So the role of this panel is to conpare the board
actions with the articles and the byl aws.

I"'mgoing to skip sonme of this because you've
al ready heard it.

There are nmultiple -- on Slide 23, there are
multi ple | RP panels that have held that the panel is not
to substitute their judgnent for that of the board.

That cones out of the booking.com decision, but you'l
also find it in Merck and you'll also find it in
Vistaprint. And I'mnot sure there is any IRP

decl aration that says anything different than that on
subst ance.

The byl aws do specify a three-part test, and so
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as the Merck panel found, it inforns the exercise of the
conparison. W are |ooking at, did the board act

wi thout a conflict of interest? Did it exercise due
diligence and care? And having a reasonabl e anount of
facts, did it exercise independent judgnent?

So this is the reason | keep saying -- | keep
t al ki ng about the fact that the board exercised
i ndependent judgment, because |'ve taken you through the
t horoughness of what the board did, the nultiple
neetings, the | ong agendas at these neetings, the |ong
col l oquy, and the very thorough board resolution and the
acconpani ed rational e.

As we noted before, |RP proceedings have to be
filed within 30 days. And so challenges to Gui debook
procedures must be filed within 30 days of publication
of the procedure's adoption. So here we have a
Gui debook that does not require the GAC to issue a
rational e.

We have M. Thorne saying that failure violates
t he byl aws.

But the board issued the Gui debook on which
Amazon submitted its application in January of 2012, and
Amazon initiated its IRP years |ater.

So we're well outside of the 30-day period. The

booki ng. com deci sion notes this. And this is really not
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so much about a statute of |limtations as nmuch as the
orderly operation of the program

If we have people com ng in and sayi ng, you know,
| know t he Gui debook doesn't say this, but |I think it
shoul d, consistent with the bylaws, well, 1930
applications were submtted relying on what the
Gui debook said. And if the rule now is going to change
because an | RP panel said, gee, we think the GAC ought
to be issuing a witten rationale, we know the Gui debook
doesn't say that, we know the GAC rejected that, we know
t he board accepted the GAC s rejection, we are now goi ng
to inmpose it, | just submt it's late in the process to
do that.

Wth respect to the issue of relief, there's no
doubt that an I RP panel can issue a binding declaration
that the board did or did not act consistent with the
articles, bylaws, or CGuidebook. But it is clearly the
board and not the panel that's responsible for deciding
how to renedy that.

So this is the -- M. Thorne acknow edged t hat
the Vistaprint decision was very clear. And | suggest
to you that it has a very logical rationale.

VWhen it comes to the question of whether or not
the I RP panel can require that | CANN s board i npl enent

any formof redress based on finding a violation, here
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t he panel believes that it can only raise renedial
measures to be considered by the board in an advisory,
nonbi ndi ng manner.

And so the notion that the panel should say, we
want you to do this, we want you to do it within x
number of days, and if you consult with the GAC, we want
you to do that within an x nunmber of days, | would urge
you on behalf of I CANN s board not to inpose any of
t hose kinds of limtations.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Wl l, if we made a
recommendati on, though, and didn't -- | nean, it's just
arguendo, the decision of the panel was that there has
been the -- there was a violation of the bylaws and
articles, just arguendo, and we recommended sonething
to -- to ICANN, to the board, is it unreasonable to put
any tineline on that recommendati on, that we reconmmend
that this be done within --

MR. LeVEE: As long as the tineline is itself a
recomrended tinmeline, I would have no concern about
t hat .

Now, | actually did not hear it in the last two
days, but in Amazon's prehearing brief, they argue that
t he GAC advice was not consensus advice. So | had a
slide in here that addressed that. | didn't hear that

argument .
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ARBI TRATOR BONNER: It sounds like it's been
conceded, the consensus advice.

MR. LeVEE: Yes, so |'mnoving --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Oh, excuse nme, M. Thorne.

MR. THORNE: Your Honor, it was never nmde. I
t hi nk we nust have been ships passing in the night. W
did not argue there was no --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think in the prehearing
briefs, | kind of understood that argunment, that it
m ght have been made. But in any event, it's not --
that's just one issue that we don't have to have
argument on.

MR. LeVEE: But Amazon does argue on page 19 of
their prehearing brief -- I"'mon Slide 30 -- that the
GAC was required to give a consensus reason. And this
is where | wanted to point out to you -- and these are,
again, to tell you the specific exhibit. Exhibit 9 is
Gui debook Version 6, which provided that the GAC shoul d
I dentify which countries were objecting, the public
policy basis for the objection and the process by which
consensus was reached.

And the GAC said, we don't |ike Exhibit --
Version 6 of the CGuidebook, and it's contrary to how we
| i ke to do things.

And so there was a neeting -- and this is in
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Exhibit R 13 -- where the chairman of the board says,

l et me nove on into another topic, which is renoval of
references in the CGuidebook that attenpt to specify that
future GAC Early Warni ngs and advi ce nust contain
particular information or take a specified form And
|'mdelighted to say that the board agrees conpletely
with the GACin relation to this topic.

And so we're -- | think -- well, it's still an
i ssue, but to me, the issue should be resolved. The GAC
didn't have a rationale. You're struggling with, well,
what do we do now in the face of that?

But | want to be very clear, to ne, the evidence
i s undi sputed that the GAC was not obligated to have a
rational e according to the CGui debook provision based on
negoti ati ons between the GAC and | CANN

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: The only argunent, really,
|l eft would be that the underlying principles of the
byl aws perhaps as reflected in an | RP deci sion would
support a determ nation that reasons of rationale should
be given for GAC advice.

And | don't want to rehash all that. | think I
understand the argunents pretty well. And you've
certainly nailed the Gui debook devel opnent and the
hi storical evolution of that, that certainly that was

not intended and it was essentially read all over the
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CGui debook that there would be a requirenent that
rati onal e be stated.

It is -- | shouldn't do this. Your time is
limted, but it is interesting that the 2016 byl aws
apparently reinstate sone requirenent that the GAC
advi ce be acconpanied with a -- reasons or rationale.

MR. LeVEE: And let nme just comment on that
briefly since you raised it.

So what has happened over the |last two years has
been that | CANN was able to wean itself off of its
rel ationship, contractual relationship with the
United States governnent. It was a supervisory
rel ati onship.

And in order to do that, there were volunteers
that made up a so-called community. And there were
peopl e who net and devoted an enornous anmount of tine
and effort to create what is, in essence, new | CANN

It's the sanme California corporation, but it has
new byl aws. As long as the bylaws and the Cui debook
used to be, the next edition is twice as |ong.

And it was in conjunction with that process that
a lot nore, for lack of better word, process was put
into place. But the bylaws that were passed many years
ago at | CANN and nodified over tinme didn't address a | ot

of these kinds of details.
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So, for exanple, IRPs are going to be conpletely
different. And they tried to anticipate a |ot of things
t hat had never conme up and so forth. So one of the
t hings that they've now instructed, going to your
comment, is that all advisory commttees, not only the
GAC -- and so this is not in response to the DCA case.
Al'l of the advisory conmttees, when they issue advice
to | CANN' s board, they have to provide a rationale for
t hat advi ce.

It's part of the new comrunity process where the
community -- yesterday you asked M. Atallah, Wat does
bottom s up nean? Sonebody asked him He tried to
explain that | CANN has supporting organi zations. It has
advi sory commttees. The future of the domai n nane
systemis not supposed to emanate fromthe board, but
the ideas are supposed to emanate fromthese
organi zations that are the constituents of | CANN

And the result of this very extensive change,
which ultimately nade its way through President OGbama
but not w thout considerabl e Republican opposition, to
set ICANN free as nore -- the result of that was nore
communi ty invol venment, nore requirenents to explain a
| ot of things that are happening.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think I got you a little

off track, and | didn't nean to do that.
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You nmade the point that the new byl aws that are
not retroactive expressly, the argunment on the other
side is that they codify, perhaps, a holding in the DCA
as precedent. Understand both the argunments. W are
going to |l ook at the DCA Trust case as to whether or not
there actually is precedent or that proposition that the
GAC needs to state a reason or rationale, so | think

we' ve got that one.

MR. LeVEE: | will nove on
On Slide 31 -- and | got a little out of sequence
because of the questions. | wanted to give you the

exhi bit nunbers of all of these things that the NGPC had
before it, that hel ped it deci pher what the GAC did.

So it had the statenment from Argentina, Brazil,
Chile, Peru, and Uruguay; the Montevi deo decl arati on.
It had the Brazilian Internet steering commttee. It
had the federal senate of Brazil, which issued a
resolution; and it had all of these other things that
|"ve just listed on Slide 32, which I will not read
separately. A lot of letters, a lot of information from
a lot of countries.

So | do think the board had consi derabl e anmount
of information before it. These were the specific
countries on Slide 33 that specifically supported the

GAC advice. There were others, candidly, that I
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couldn't conpletely tell. Their statenents were a
little ambiguous, and so | didn't put themon there.
But these countries in particular were quite clear.

And then you' ve got the statenent of Peru, the
statement of all these countries. You' ve got, of
course, the Early Warning, and you' ve got their
commruni ques.

Just a rem nder of what M. Atallah confirned
yesterday. He told you that the board invited and
revi ewed Anmazon's responses and that it did take
Amazon's interests into account.

| asked himif they took Amazon's interests in
account. He said, Absolutely. W read Amazon's papers.
We, of course, took their position into account.

He was asked by M. Thorne if the NGPC took
Amazon's custoners' interests into account. | think
M. Atallah dodged that question and | think
appropriately so. | don't know how you woul d take
custoners' interests into account.

Amazon has mllions of custonmers. They're a very
successful conmpany. | don't know how you coul d define
who the custoner base is, but you can define Amazon.
They' re an inportant conmpany and they're entitled to
have their interests considered and they were.

And then this slide just tells you -- and we

Page 418

Veritext Lega Solutions
877-955-3855




a A W DN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

really already covered this -- all of the other things
that the NGPC did as part of its investigation.

So the bylaws required that the board had due
diligence and care in having reasonabl e anount of facts.

| think it's hard to argue that the board did not
have a reasonabl e anount of facts.

The strong presunption neant that the GAC advice
woul d be foll owed unless there was evidence sufficiently
strong to convince the NGPC that the underlying public
policy concerns were unfounded.

And that's where we've had a | ong colloquy, and
so I'"'mnot going to dwell there other than to say that |
do think we have denonstrated easily that the concerns
have nore and pl ausi bl e foundati ons.

And it's clear that the GAC advice was related to
i ssues of public policy. They say it repeatedly. It's
not that the GAC was saying, oh, by the way, we have
sonme ot her concern we want to talk to you about. These
were issues of public policy.

So | think we are in a situation where the GAC s
advi ce was not nmanifestly wong. | do not know the
standard of when you would reject a strong presunption,
but I would imagine, as M. Atallah said yesterday, that
if the advice was manifestly wong, such as Peru being

in error, that the board would not have adopted the
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advice. And that was his answer to the question.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Assum ng that the GAC -- the
underlying rationale for the GAC advice was we're
obj ecti ng because we don't want a U. S. conpany or
conpany -- a non-Brazilian conpany to have the nane
.amazon, would that be a valid public policy position
for a country to take?

MR. LeVEE: Well, first, | don't think it was the
posi tion.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: No, |I'mnot saying it was.

This is a hypothetical, | think.
Well, | don't want to prejudge, but all --
MR. LeVEE: | don't know. If the public interest

of Brazil or Peru or any of the other countries was that
they felt that the name should be operated by a South
Ameri can country because it was so close to the name of
their river, and they had concerns based on it, | don't
think I could say how the board woul d have felt about
t hat .

| think it could have been plausible advice.
It's not what happened. And | know that there is --
that the charge here of discrimnation, but | don't see
that. Wat | see is that Amazon is a U S. conpany. And
| see a couple of e-mails where Amazon is accused of

being a U S. conpany. WIlIl, they are.
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| don't know that there would have been any
difference if they had said, well, you know what, they
are a Luxenmbourg conpany, because that's where they are
actually incorporated, and so we're going to
di scrim nate agai nst Luxenmbourg or the U K. or France.

Am | answering your question?

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  You are -- | nean, you are

doi ng your best.

MR. LeVEE: | think it's a tough one. 1It's a
t ough question. | hadn't thought about it. And | think
if -- if the governnent of Peru, as an exanple, says

that this nanme is extrenely close to the nane of the
river in our country that dom nates a | ot of the
geography in our country and we want it operated in a
certain way, we think that there m ght be problens if
sonebody el se operates it, the fact that it's a U S.
conpany, | think, probably would have been besi de the
point. It certainly would not have been a South
American country -- conpany.

So --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: \Where are you in the --

MR. LeVEE: |1'mgetting close to done, but I'm
not done. Do you need a break?

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Yes, the reporter would Iike

a break. So we'll take our afternoon recess. We' |
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take ten mnutes. It's about 3:10. We'IlIl resune at
3: 20.

(Recess.)

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: W are back on the record.

MR. LeVEE: W are. And we're now skipping ahead
to Slide 43 because |'ve determ ned that we' ve al ready
covered many of the internal slides in part because they
address the DCA and GCC matters, and that's where | had
started prior to lunch.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Great.

MR. LeVEE: So we didn't hear nuch about
.1 piranga yesterday, but there was a little bit of
testinony on it. But M. Thorne raised it this norning,
so | want to address it.

So Amazon argues that rejecting .amzon but
allowng .ipiranga is discrimnatory.

| want to be clear that the thrust of what Amazon
is arguing, | believe, is that the board actually did
sonething with respect to the .ipiranga application, and
it didn"t. And that's what M. Atallah told you
yest er day.

VWhen there was no objection of any kind asserted
agai nst a string, gTLD application, the board would
never have a reason to be invol ved.

In order to discrimnate, one has to treat one
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party different from another party. But the board never
treated the .ipiranga application at all. You wll find
no reference to the .ipiranga application in any board
meeti ng m nutes.

There were several hundred applications that had
no conmunity objection or any other objections such as
GAC advice. And so they go through, and they wi nd up
del egat ed.

Amazon was the subject of GAC advice. And as we
know, GAC advice is a reason that the NGPCis to
consi der an application. They alnpst have to. |If there
is consensus GAC advice, the board has to do sonet hi ng.
They have to adopt it, not adopt it. They have to act.

So I don't see any discrimnation. And it would
be no different than arguing that any of the other
t housand or so applications that had no objection were
al so sonehow discrimnated in favor of those
applications.

And |i kewi se, | should note, Amazon had over 70
ot her applications that did not draw an objection and
t hat sail ed through.

So | think that it's -- that the context of
nondi scrim nation is not applicable here.

Now, here is the other point I wanted to nake,

which is -- this is Article Il, Section 3 of the byl aws,
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which -- it's on Amazon's |ist.

And | think, by the way, | may have erred as to
whet her the core value that | nentioned before was on
Amazon's list. | think actually it was. | just m ssed
it.

And let ne read it in full because it's short (as
read):

"I CANN shall not apply its

st andards, policies, procedures, or

practices inequitably or single out any

particular party for disparate treatnent

unl ess justified by substantial and

reasonabl e cause such as the pronotion

of effective conpetition.”

The thrust of what this is saying is that | CANN
has to approach the world the sane. They can't say, as
an exanple, you're in England and we don't I|ike
sonmet hing that you're doing and so we're going to --
we're going to treat you as if you have sonme -- as we
have a special reason for calling out people who operate
in England, and we're going to inpose certain
requi renments.

Thi s does not nmean that when sonmebody is the
subj ect of GAC advice and anot her application is not the

subj ect of GAC advice, that you sonehow have to treat
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t hose two applications the same. The purpose of the
nondi scrim natory treatnent is sinply say, you have to
have rules that apply to everyone the sane.

The Gui debook does apply to everyone the sane.

And if -- and to the extent there is GAC advice
with respect to applications -- and | think, actually,
it's sonething fewer than ten actually received GAC
advice -- the board is going to consider those
applications. But it doesn't nean -- this provision
does not nmean that if sonebody gets GAC advice and
sonebody el se does not get GAC advice, that we shoul d
treat those applications exactly the sanme and consi der
them both and figure out what to do about both. There
is nothing in the bylaws that even hints at that.

We want to treat everyone fairly with policies,
procedures, and practices that apply the sanme to
everyone. But not every application gets GAC advi ce.
If we were supposed to | ook at every application, we
woul d have had to | ook at Amazon's 73 other applications
and deci de whet her they shoul d have proceeded.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Is it relevant, though, that
Brazil did not object to a private conpany using the
.ipiranga string?

MR. LeVEE: No. If -- anybody could have

obj ected, and nobody did. That's what's relevant.
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ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Yeah, but is it rel
the sense that Brazil is the primary objector
one of the leaders with Peru of the -- essenti

GAC advice objecting to the .amazon string? |

evant in
to -- and
ally the

mean, iS

it relevant for us to consider that they did not

register a simlar objection to a Brazilian conpany

using the name of a very well-known river in Brazil?

MR. LeVEE: Well, first, let me quarrel
second part.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Wl | - known?

with the

MR. LeVEE: The Ipiranga is 5 mles long. This

is on Slide 44. The facts that are on Slide 44, | want

to be clear, they -- these facts were not before the

board. The board never considered .ipiranga.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: But the board knew t hat
.1 piranga had been granted in a string, did it not?

MR. LeVEE: It knew in a passive way, because, as
| said, there are a thousand applications that drew no
obj ection of any kind, and the board woul d get periodic
reports. These have all gone forward.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Didn't Amazon refer to it,

t hough, in sone of the subm ssions it nmade that are

actually cited by the NPGC?

MR. LeVEE: It did. But the NGPC s -- the
process was the NGPC woul d consider -- would be told --
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M. Atallah actually nentioned this to you yesterday.

The NGPC woul d get weekly lists. These are al
the applications to which objections had been | odged.
And then that |ist over the course of nonths would --
slowly but surely those objections would be adjudicat ed.
And then we'd be to where we are now, a small handful
that still were in dispute of some kind or another.

So the board would get that kind of information,
but nothing nore. And with .ipiranga, it wouldn't have
been on the list.

Yes.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: And M. Thorne probably
won't be happy with this characterization of it. But if
you are right and there's no -- because the different
type of applications, there is not a valid claimthere
was discrimnation by the board itself, wouldn't the
fact that Brazil didn't object to a Brazilian conpany
taking the name of a Brazilian river undercut their
pur ported public policy reason for objecting to Amazon,
a U S. conpany, having the name of another river in
Brazil? 1Isn't that the argunment, that it just kind of
undercuts -- further undercuts any claimthat there was
a real public policy?

MR. LeVEE: | suppose that's the argunent.

But -- well, two things: ©One, | can't tell you why
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Brazil didn't object to .ipiranga.

VWhat | can tell you is that the Amazon River
flows for 4300 mles and is the home to 10 mllion
peopl e.

The | piranga brook, which is what we found when
we | ooked it up, is 5 1/2 mles long, flows through the
| piranga district of Brazil that has a popul ati on of
98, 000. One coul d suppose that Brazil said, nother
river, |piranga brook, we're going to take two different
approaches.

| can't tell you what the reason is. The purpose
of this slide was to say that Brazil could easily have
had a rational reason, but | don't know what the reason
iS.

My point is, the main point, is that if |I'm going
to discrimnate, | actually have to do sonething. And I
don't see how we could find discrimnation where the
board and the NGPC literally were unaware that .ipiranga
was going forward and had no reason -- nobody brought to
their attention through an objection, Brazil or anybody
el se, or the independent objector -- nobody filed an
obj ecti on, peri od.

Now, M. Thorne took you through the articles,
the byl aws, the Gui debook to tell you that he thinks

that there are ways that you can find that | CANN
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violated them and so |I'mgoing to do the sane.

And |'m not going to take as |ong, but [|'ve
listed -- this is pretty nuch out of Amazon's sort of
list, and I did it in slides rather than doing it in a
separ at e handout.

VWhen you |l ook at the articles, Article IV
requires that we operate for the benefit of the Internet
community as a whole. | think the evidence is clear we
didit.

We conformed to applicable requirenents of
international |aw, and we even got an expert to tell us
what the law is.

We foll owed open and transparent processes.
Everyone knew what was in front of the board when the
board was voting. There was a ton of information
provided to the board by the parties.

In the bylaws, we have the core val ues.

We introduced conpetition to the extent
practicable and beneficial in the public interest.
Let's be clear, we are introducing conpetition. There
is no doubt the board did that. W've got a thousand
new top-level domains that are in the Internet root, but
that's not to say that everybody who applies, sinmply
because they are conpetition, new conpetition

automatically get approved. W have objection
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procedures.

And so here the public interest as expressed by
the GAC and the countries that support it, they felt
that this was an i nappropriate use of a top-Ieve
domai n.

So you introducing conpetition does not nmean that
you sacrifice all of the other conpeting interests that
are set forth in the Gui debook.

Bylaws Article I, Section 2.7. W did enploy
open and transparent devel opnent nechani sns. W had
wel | -fornmed deci si ons based on expert advice that we had
obtai ned. And we ensured that the entities nost
affected can assist in the policy devel opnent process.
Well, policy devel opnent process really, here, are the
peopl e who decided to go forward with the programin the
first instance, the GNSO

But if you want to apply that nore broadly, we
made sure that those that were affected coul d speak.
Both Amazon and the governnents, they spoke freely and
frequently.

Article I, Section 2.7. The NGPC nmade deci si ons
by appl yi ng docunented policies neutrally and

objectively with integrity and fairness.

And Article I, Section 2.11 -- | already showed
you 2.9 -- | guess 2.11. | nentioned this before.
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While rooted in the public -- private sector, the board
recogni zed that governnments and public authorities are
responsi ble for public policy and duly took into account
t heir recomendati ons.

| want to stay with that for one second.

In the colloquy before the break, as | reflected
onit, it occurred to ne that it seened as if the panel
was struggling with where the burden of proof lies. And
here we have public policy that is behind the advice.

You may di sagree with Brazil and Peru as to what
the public policy is, but they were expressing the
interests of the mllions of people who |ive along the
Amazon River, concerns on their behalf.

Once the GAC adopts advice that seens rooted in
public policy because that's what the GAC i s supposed to
be doing, a strong presunption applies. And |I would
urge you to find that at that point, in effect, the
burden shifts to the applicant.

Once you have a strong presunption, that really
tells you if we were in sonme case authority situation,
let's say, under statute and the statute said there's a
strong presunption that if x happens, theny is true, |
t hi nk you woul d automatically as judges say, well, yeah,
then the burden of proof is on the party opposing the

consensus advi ce. And that's where | think the scal es
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easily tip here.

Amazon hasn't proven that the public policy
interests were manifestly wong. Use whatever the --
what ever words you think are appropri ate.

There has to be sonme hurdle to say, NGPC got it
wrong because it should have known that the GAC advice
was fl awed.

The issue here is not really so much the GAC
advice. The issue is what did the NGPC do? That's what
we are here to assess. And when you have a strong
presunption, it puts the burden of proof on the
applicant that is the subject of that presunption to
cone forward and say, NGPC, you need to disregard the
GAC advice, and here are the reasons why.

And | do think that it is not the board's
ordinary province to second-guess the public policy
interests of governnents. This is Brazil and Peru
expressing the interests of literally mlIlions of people
in their countries and the |argest river that occupies
the territory and that has international perceptions one
way or the other -- everybody knows about the river.

So | think -- we are turning to Slide 46. The
board's job is to balance all of these values. And yes,
Amazon argues that when you | ook at sone of these

words -- we're going to get to nore of them-- that
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sonmehow t hose words should equate to the GAC has to give
policy rationale to support its advice.

We know that those words aren't there that way.
And | don't think that any of the bylaws or articles
appropriately are read that way.

Now, shifting to the nondiscrin nation and
transparency, in Article Il of the bylaws, Section 3,
the question is: Did the NGPC apply its standards,
policies, procedures, and practices inequitably or
single out any party for disparate treatnent?

That's really the .ipiranga issue, and we've
al ready covered it.

The second issue is: Did the NGPC operate to the
maxi mum extent feasible in an open and transparent
manner designed to ensure fairness?

Seven neetings, publicly posted agendas, publicly
posted neeting m nutes, publicly posted rationale,
frequent requests to the parties.

Tel |l us nore.

Respond to the GAC advice. Respond to the Passa
report.

| think candidly, it would be difficult to
suggest the NGPC coul d have done nore in ternms of being
open and transparent.

Finally, under the Gui debook.
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The NGPC recogni zed that the Gui debook treats
strings with geographic connotations as sensitive. It
does it not only through the availability of GAC advice,
but through other objections that can be asserted. And
it respected the CGui debook's two-track approach to
geographic strings. Track 1, geographic names review.
Track 2, GAC advice. |It's clear that both tracks were
avai |l abl e. Amazon passed one, and it did not pass the
ot her.

The NGPC conformed to the Gui debook principle
t hat governnents had the option to use the GAC advice to
rai se concerns as an alternative to comunity
obj ections, and that's what happened here.

And t he NGPC adhered to the Gui debook procedure
that allowed the GAC to express its advice in a manner
it chooses with no requirenment of an explicit statenent
of consensus rational e.

Real |y already covered Slide 48, the standards
for independent review, so I'mgoing to skip that in the
interest of tine.

| do want to note again that the GAC s actions on
its own are not reviewable in this IRP. \Wat's
reviewable is the board's treatnment of those actions.

We do think, even so, that the GAC s conduct

confornmed to the articles, bylaws, and CGui debook. W
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don't think any decision of an I RP panel has said that
the GAC nust give in every circunstance a stated
rational e.

The one decision that | think hints at that is
t he DCA decision which involved facts so incredibly
different fromthis case that | think the panel woul d
have issued a very different ruling if it had had the
debate of the GAC and the debate of the NGPC before it.

| nst ead, what that panel had was literally GAC
advice that canme out from nowhere with no expl anation
and no di scussion, no transcript, and then an NGPC
meeti ng where the NGPC basically, you know, stated very
little of its rationale for why it accepted the GAC s
advi ce.

So | et nme concl ude.

As | said fromthe outset, all geographic strings
are proper subject for GAC advice, period, end of story.

The ICC s dism ssal of the community objection is
not relevant because the GAC had issued its advice and
is entitled to do so under a parallel track. The GAC s
advi ce was consensus, and therefore, it was entitled to
the strong presunption.

Your focus, then, is the next three -- next four
bullets. Wat did the NGPC do? It took care to gather

the pertinent facts. It took care to get additional
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information. It asked for the Passa report. |t asked
Amazon to submit a response to the GAC advice to the
Passa report, and Amazon submtted to the board,
literally.

You have no facts to suggest anything other than
that the NGPC exercised i ndependent judgnent.

You have a handful of e-mmils saying that Brazi
had i ssues with | CANN

As M. Atallah nmentioned yesterday, |ots of
countries had issues. |CANN had to work with each
country on its own to try to nove forward. What | CANN
told Brazil, as | took M. Atallah through it yesterday,
was exactly what the Gui debook provided. These are the
t hings you can do with the ultimte being, well, you can
try to get the GAC to act.

There woul d have been no way for the | CANN
representative, nmuch |l ess the country of Brazil, to know
at the time whether the GAC woul d i ssue consensus
advice. That was up to the GAC

And | CANN certainly wasn't plotting to achieve a
consensus advice. There would be no way for I CANN to do
that at all.

So there really is no evidence that the NGPC was
fearful or influenced by any kind of so-called threats

and no evidence that the NGPC discrim nated agai nst the
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applications.

So I would submit to you that Amazon has not
denonstrated that the NGPC acted inconsistent with its
duties, NGPC acting on behalf of the board duties under
the articles, the bylaws, or the CGui debook.

Thank you for terrific questions.

On behalf of ICANN, | want you to know t hat
they' ve been terribly inpressed by the panel's diligence
and attention. W haven't always had this |evel of
attention and interaction in every hearing, although
sonetines they are by phone and so it's hard to tell.

But it does seem every now and again that we've had a
panel i st that was snoring, and so we're very, very, very
much appreciative for all the effort that the three of
you have put in, and we thank you for every question and
for all that you' ve done.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Haven't you noticed Bonner
el bowi ng me to wake nme up?

MR. LeVEE: That concl udes --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: No, but | do have a question.
That is, one of these slides -- and | can't put ny
finger on it right now, but it basically says that the
board, the NGPC thoroughly investigated the issues
surroundi ng whether or not it should deny, reject the

application, or allowit to proceed. And I'm
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enphasi zing the word "investigated" here.

It doesn't seemto nme that there was any
investigation as to whether the public policy reasons
t hat were advanced not by the GAC, but by Brazil and
Peru and so forth were investigated to determ ne whet her
they were valid, legitimte, plausible, credible public
policy reasons with the one exception and that is the
guestion under international |aw, whether Brazil or
ot her countries had a sovereign right to the nane. That
was acted on. There was sonme diligence to investigate
that and at |least try to come up with a determ nation

But as to the other issues, there doesn't appear
to be an investigation. So two questions: One, would
you agree that w thout exception, the public policy
reasons to the extent that they are -- were expressed by
either Brazil or Peru or in other docunents were not
investigated? And then | think that the answer to that
is yes, but -- and then if it is, whether or not under
the circunstances here there was a duty of the board or
the NPGC to investigate.

So there are two questions.

MR. LeVEE: Yes. So | guess you're going to be
surprised, but ny answer to the first question is:
There was an investigation, but not the kind I think you

were contenplating. And I'mjust going to rely on what
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M. Atallah said yesterday.

You asked hi mor Judge Matz asked him What do
you do when you have these statenments from countries?

And M. Atallah said, So |ong as the advice seens
to us to be plausible, that is, the public policy
advi ce, we, the board, do not view ourselves to be in a
position to second-guess the advice.

If the advice is manifestly wong -- you had a
coll oquy on that -- that would be one thing. But advice
such as appears plausible otherw se, and he tal ked about
what that advice was, then we, the board, would not --
well, | don't think he said it this way, so let ne
answer it how | would say it.

Once the advice appears to be plausible, that
t hese countries had concerns about the effect on their
citizens and the future ability of their citizens to
ei ther use the name or sonmehow be affected by the fact
t hat soneone woul d be operating the top-1level domain
that wasn't necessarily taking their interests at heart
in doing things with it, once the board determ nes that
that's not manifestly incorrect, then the board's
obligation at that point ends because it doesn't have an
obligation to conduct sone reasonable inquiry to nake
sure the GACis right.

It is ill-suited to do that when the GAC is
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giving advice that relates to public policy concerns
that are unique to particular countries. So there's
one -- there's lots of different kinds of public policy.

M. Atallah went through that to sone degree
yest er day.

There are kinds of public policy that we can all
debate. Should there be higher taxes or |ower taxes, or
what is the best way of approaching North Korea? But
when a country has its own public policy issue and it's
not United States' issue as to whether Brazil cares
about it or is protecting in some way its citizens that
live near the river in that region, | think the board
does not have any obligation to nove forward, and |
think that's what M. Atallah was telling you yesterday.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: | think that's probably a
fair sunmary. Thank you

Any ot her questions fromeither of ny
co- panel i sts?

M. Thorne, did you want to respond at all?

MR. THORNE: Your Honor, |'ve been nmaki ng notes,
and |'ve got a very small nunber of questions that you
all have asked that | thought | had a different or
better answer to, and I1'd like to just respond to
guestions that you had. | don't want to nake additional

argument .
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Just | want to be responsive --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: The real question is -- and
| -- the court reporter m ght want a break here. The
guestion would be how | ong do you think your -- we'll
call it rebuttal argunment would be?

MR. THORNE: |If there were no questions, but
that's not what |I'm hoping for. | think |I have maybe
five m nutes of prior questions that 1'd Iike to respond
to. But realistically, if the reporter wants a break --

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: There probably will be a few
guesti ons.

Do you want to take a --

THE REPORTER: It's okay.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let's take a --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Did she say it's okay?

THE REPORTER: |' m okay.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  You're okay? All right.

THE REPORTER: Thank you.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let's go.

MR. THORNE: All right. Let's go.

CLOSI NG ARGUMENT
BY MR. THORNE
Let's start with the very |ast question.

You asked M. LeVee whet her there had been an
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i ndependent investigation, and his answer was, if |'ve
got it right, I"mgoing to rely on M. Atall ah.

VWhen you get the hearing transcript on Mnday --
|'ve got just the rough -- |ook at page 95, because this
is what the rough says M. Atallah testified to.

Judge Bonner, you asked (as read):

"So did the NGPC, did it nmake any

i ndependent inquiry as to whether or not

there was a valid public interest

rationale for the GAC advice in this

matter.
"The Wtness: No, it did not."
No i ndependent investigation. |In fact, that's
the -- that's how we started today with our opening

slide. That's where we started in our slide.

You asked a rel ated question, which is, is there
any source of -- what is the requirenent that the NGPC
investigate? W cited this in our prehearing brief, but
let me tell you it's DCA Trust, CLA 2, paragraph 113,
and the GCC final decision, CLA 31, paragraph 139.

So that's one.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: M. Thorne, you invited
guestions. So just on the point you are raising now, if
the obligation -- or if the opportunity of the NGPC

board to go behind the assertion of public policy
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interest relating to the interests of the residents of
this large Amazon region, if that opportunity had been
exerci sed by the NGPC board consistent with the way

| CANN operated, how did they go about figuring out

whet her or not that was a valid assertion for Brazil and
Peru to have made?

MR. THORNE: Judge Matz, | think |I have to take
the question apart a little bit.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Fine. Go ahead.

MR. THORNE: In order to evaluate an assertion
we have to understand what the assertion is. So one
part of the debate that I'Il get back into if you |liKke,
but 1'll assunme everyone understands, is we believe the
GAC shoul d have provided a rationale.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: No, but I'm not asking about
that. We all know that it didn't.

MR. THORNE: But if there were a rationale, then
you could test it.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: But because there wasn't, we're
having this proceeding. That's one of the reasons why.
And so the question is whether the board carried out its
duties under the bylaws and the articles of
i ncorporation and the Gui debook. And if it had a duty
to go beyond the words that were used that were in the

record before, the words that cane initially from Brazi
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and Peru but that were reflected in various GAC neetings
and devel opnents, how would it have gone beyond those
words only on the issue? Not of whether or not it was
recogni zed as a string or it was in violation or was
supported by international |law. Judge Bonner put those
asi de.

I"'monly asking you now, just give nme an honest
answer about how it would have | ooked into the assertion
that the interests that Brazil and Peru were asserting
on behalf of the residents of this |large region
warranted denial of Amazon's application.

MR. THORNE: So again, | think you have to start
with what interests are we tal king about? For exanpl e,
if the interest is we want to reserve this nane for
future use, we want Amazon not to have it now because in
the future, we mght want to use it for a special
pur pose, that is sonething that could be investigated,
just like the international |aw question could be
i nvesti gat ed.

| think the answer that would conme back is the
various organi zations in the comunity objection process
al ready resolved that in favor of open entry,

encour agi ng conpetition, which nmeans a current applicant

with a valid use gets it rather than reserving it, |ike
war ehousing it for sonebody who is not there. | think
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that's how that woul d have been resol ved.

But again, you have to start with what's the
asserted interest and then --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: |'m only asking about that
single interest.

So it's not your contention that the NGPC woul d
have had the duty to take a survey or invite expert
reports about the enbrace of the word "Amazon" by people
in that region, even though they hadn't participated in
the process up till then? Nothing out in the field |ike
that, that wouldn't be necessary?

MR. THORNE: |'m not sure whether anything out in
the field woul d be appropriate. | think the test as
articulated by the case is making a reasoned deci sion.

In the case of the international |aw question,
does Brazil have sovereign rights? They comm ssioned an
expert on that. | assunme the expert went to sources
out side the I CANN body. But again, | think it depends
on what the interest is. And here we know there was no
i nvesti gati on.

So let me, if it's all right, go through a snal
nunmber of additional things that had conme up. First
point -- and I'll try to be clear here. | thought | was
clear, but M. LeVee still seens to be making the

argunent so | guess | wasn't clear in the briefs.
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Qur side is not arguing, so | don't think this is
one of the issues you need to decide, that the Gui debook
shoul d have been anended to require the GAC to provide a
rationale. W are not arguing about whether the
Gui debook shoul d have been anended. We're arguing that
the various texts, including the Gui debook, but
especially the bylaws, require GAC advice.

There is certainly nothing in the Gui debook that
M. LeVee has pointed to that forbids the GAC to give
advi ce, and of course now the bylaws do require it
expressly. But we're not meking an argunent about sone
process that is tinme barred. That's not our point.

The second thing, Judge Bonner, you referred to a
fundanmental right to be heard. | just want to nention
that in our prehearing brief, page 26, we cite sources.
We called it a universal, not a fundanmental right under
i nternational and national |laws for notice and an
opportunity to be heard.

M. LeVee has a preference for United Nations.
The first thing we cited on page 26 is United Nations
comm ssion on international trade |aw, of their nodel ed
| aw on international conmmercial arbitration, which

descri bes the notice and an opportunity to be heard or

required. He cited the -- | think, the | eading Suprene
Court case of the United States. It is a fundanental
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right, but it is well docunented so it's just a source
of authority to point the board to.

Athird small thing. There are two docunents
that M. LeVee tal ked about. One he actually wal ked
through, R 7 and R 8. W thought M. LeVee and | CANN
were not relying on those docunents anynore. But if you
| ook -- for exanple, he tal ked about R 7. These are
docunent s about how the GAC ni ght behave.

Page 1 of R 7 at the bottom says (as read):

"Pl ease note that this is a

di scussion draft only. Potentia

applicants should not rely on any of the

proposed details."

Thi s was sonmebody's consideration. It wasn't
enacted as any of the docunents that are relevant to
Amazon.

A fourth and simlar point, M. LeVee talked
about The Launch Rational es, which was a new docunment he
brought up in his April 5 brief. That was the cause of
our asking for leave to file a reply. And | think we've
addressed that there.

But if you | ook at the text and structure of the
CGui debook itself, if you look at the part of the
Gui debook that says, if you want to know the conplete

set of docunents to |ook at, you | ook here. The Launch
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Rational es are not there.
The fact that it wasn't -- The Launch Rational es
were not put out for notice and comment tells you that

they weren't nmeant to have an effect on third-party

rights. But again, | think we have covered that in our
reply brief.
Simlarly, the sequence -- this is interesting.

The sequence of adoption of Gui debook drafts. M. LeVee
notes that in, I think, the first five, maybe the first
Six -- probably first five drafts of the Gui debook,
there was a requirenment in the CGuidebook to give -- for
the GAC to give not just advice. This is in I CANN s
prehearing brief, page 32. The petitions are quoted.

(As read):

"Al so provide sources of data and

i nformation on which the GAC relied in

fornmulating its advice.”

Not just its rationale, but what's the basis of
your rationale? A nmuch nore burdensone process, but
that was described in those early drafts of the
CGui debook as coming from | CANN s transparency
requirenments. It is quoted in ICANN s brief, page 32.

| CANN s transparency requirenments, which cone out
of the articles and byl aws, required GAC rationale.

That was dropped. [|'mnot sure if it was dropped
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because it was too burdensone at sonme point or because
it was already covered with the byl aws.

But | wouldn't draw nuch fromthe evol ution of
the thing, especially given that it refers to
transparency requirenments which conti nued throughout.

Judge Bonner, you asked if there is soneplace in
the NGPC rationale a valid public interest, a valid
policy interest. So maybe there's a m stake by Peru.
Maybe there's a m stake by Brazil and sovereign rights.
Maybe there was sone snoke or reality of a threat from
nations or an anti-U. S. bias.

But if there was a valid policy interest in there
sonepl ace, could that save this? And again, | want to
refer to M. Atallah's testinony from yesterday.

| asked him-- this will be on page 118 of the
transcri pt.

(As read):

"I'f the GAC provi des consensus
advi ce" --

|"msorry (as read):

"I f GAC consensus advi ce was based

on a fear of foreign exploitation of the

domain name or a plain anti-U. S. conpany

bias, if it was based on that, would it

still be your position that you woul d
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defer to the GAC advice."

And M. Atallah's answer was (as read):
"I believe public interest of the

peopl e of the region trunps anything,

yes."

Very strong statenent.

M. LeVee made a statement toward the end that if
the underlying rationale, the GAC advice, or maybe for
sone of countries that pushed for the GAC advice -- if
the underlying rationale was a pro-Brazil -- let's
reserve Brazilian things for Brazilian conpanies, if
there was anti-foreign or anti-U S. bias, he wasn't sure
whet her that would be consistent with how I CANN is
supposed to operate.

In the excerpts that we've passed around and one
of the provisions that M. LeVee tal ked about, in the
articles, the highest |Ievel and the hierarchy of
governi ng docunents, the articles, paragraph 4, it
starts (as read):

"I CANN shal |l operate for the

benefit of the Internet community as a

whol e in conformty with rel evant

princi ples of international |aw that

enabl e conpetition and open entry and

Internet-rel ated nmarkets."
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| didn't think this was going to be an issue in
the case, but | think it's plain from paragraph 4 of the
articles, I CANN cannot reserve donmmins for particular
countries or conpanies that are located in particul ar
countries.

This is a worldwi de Internet. Amazon is
operating across the globe. [It's got its trademarks and
its operations are global. It would be a very different
approach to include GAC advice that's based on
country-specific reservations.

So | think one nore point to make, and that's
basically in a docunent that we cited in our brief. And
"' mgoing to hand out just for convenience an extra
copy. You already have this. W will mark it as
Hearing Exhibit No. --

MS. BEYNON: It's already an exhibit.

MR. THORNE: It's Exhibit C 92.

To give this a little bit of context, the board
chair at the tine, for exanple, that The Launch
Rational es, M. LeVee's best new docunent for how to
t hi nk about geographi c nanes, the board chair was Peter
Dengat e Thrush.

Here the board has abdicated its duty to
i nvestigate, but he anticipated that they should do

otherw se. This is Peter Dengate Thrush upon | earning
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of the GAC advice here (as read):
"I'f the GAC continues to give

hal f - baked i nconsistent advice in the

face of the board' s response today, the

board is not obliged to follow it."

There's not a shred of credibility to the
obj ecti on, which ambunts to those countries, Brazil and
ot hers, using an | CANN processing forumto obtain a
result they could not obtain under their own national
| aw or any principal of international law. It's a
breach of the legitimte expectations of TLD applicants.
It lies outside the hard, raw principles that he was
responsi ble for in The Launch Rationales. So another
i nportant actor fromthis space, |ooking at what the GAC
di d and shaki ng his head.

So it's up to the panel to hold I CANN to
accountability to the conmunity.

And | would | ove to get further questions.
O herwise, I'd very nmuch like -- M. LeVee, | very nmuch
appreci ate your attention.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Do you know of f hand,
M. Thorne, whether this docunment you just handed out,
C 92, was before the NGPC in 2014 when the vote was
t aken?

MR. THORNE: | assune, but don't know, Judge
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Mat z, that the | CANN alum Listserv is a broad Listserv
because | CANN had has a | ot of people cycle in and out.
W' ve seen sonme of them | assunme that this was well
known to the community.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Any ot her questions, Judge
O Brien?

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: No.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER:  Judge Mat z?

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: No.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Let ne thank both counsel, by
the way. This has been, | think, an extraordinarily
wel |l presented case. So thank you both. It has been
some reasonably difficult issues for us to grapple wth,
but you have both been very, very hel pful and done an
excel | ent j ob.

There's one little cleanup thing I want to
mention, and that's the exhibit list. |'m wondering
whet her | m ght ask counsel just to prepare an exhibit
list of the hearing exhibits, so we know t he nanmes of
them by nunber and maybe e-mmil that to the panel,
mean, after both sides have conferred.

And then there's the C exhibits and R exhibits.
And | realize we have all of themeither on the disk
drive and then | got a box of docunments that's sitting

inny library at home, but it would be hel pful, if
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not hing el se, just to nake sure that there is a master
joint exhibit list. And | think there is one because |
| ooked in the boxes, but it didn't seemto track in a
way .

So it would just be helpful, I think, if we just
had a master exhibit -- whoever has the Wrd docunent on
this, a master exhibit list that has all of the C
exhibits and all of the R exhibits, especially those
t hat have been referred to here, just so we have one
docunment we can |look at and if we needed to | ook up an
exhi bit by nunber.

Does that make sense, Counsel ?

MR. LeVEE: O course.

MR. THORNE: We will work with ICANN to do that.

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: May | meke a suggestion? |f
there's going to be a consolidated, jointly prepared
master exhibit |list which contains entries fromthe
exhibits that were attached to the pleadi ngs and bi nders
we got with the C and the R and then new ones for the
prehearing briefs as well as the ones that were used
here at the hearing, could you be good enough to pl ace
an asterisk next to the ones that were actually called
out for discussion in the last two days?

MR. LeVEE: Yes.

MR. THORNE: Yes, Your Honor.
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One clarification. There was a particul ar
document in M. LeVee's binder that if he had brought
up, | was going to object to because one of our
stipulations to limt discovery said there was a topic
we weren't going to get into. And | didn't know if
M. LeVee was going to use it or not, so |I'm hoping --

ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Work it out with him

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Yeah, | think you can.

And if you could designate if it was an exhibit
that is referred to at the hearing or in the pretrial
briefs, maybe that's a double asterisk or sonething --
let me fine-tune this wordsmth.

But give us sonething that would help us if you
were having to wite a decision and you wanted to refer
back to exhibits that had been referred to in the
testinmony. And that would be a joint exhibit list that
I s understandabl e and al so has sone way of nore
i dentifying that a particular exhibit was referred to
either in argunent or in the testinony of M. Atall ah.

In fact, | guess we'll have a separate exhibit
list for M. Atallah's testinony. So we have at | east
three separate exhibit lists here. And ny only regret
inlife right nowis that as the chair presiding nenber
here, | did not require a joint exhibit list to begin

with, because we al nost always do that, but |I failed to
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do it.

So we're going to make up for that by getting one
fromcounsel. And if you could, | don't think there's a
great rush, but we're going to get the hearing
transcri pt next Wednesday, | believe.

MR. THORNE: Monday.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Next Monday. And so let's
say by next Monday, if you could get us this joint
exhibit list that captures all the C and the R exhibits,
captures all of the hearing exhibits, which is a
separate -- some of them are probably overl apping, and
all of the -- M. Atallah w tness exhibits, that would
be hel pful to us.

ARBI TRATOR O BRI EN: What woul d be hel pful to ne
is that, for exanple, Atallah, some of the exhibits were
probably new and sonme were prior or exhibits that were
already on the exhibit list. So if you can put a
cross-reference. And it may be that the exhibits were
done twice. | don't know if the respondents and
clai mants had --

MR. THORNE: There were sone.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN: -- sone overlap, so any
point there's an overlap, so if the R7 is the sane as
C 13 and the sane as Atallah --

MR. THORNE: We'll give you all the different
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ways they were identified.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN:  You can just put that so we
know it's the same docunent, that would be great.

MR. THORNE: W I I do.

MR. LeVEE: Not a problem

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: All right. Oher than that,
et me say that the panel will -- once we get the
transcript, we will work diligently to get a reasoned
deci sion or declaration in this case.

|"ve learned | ong ago not to nmake rash
predictions as to exactly when that's going to happen.
There's a lot for us, | think, to consider. And we're
going to have to confer anong ourselves to come up with

the decl aration or the reasoned deci sion.

So we'll get it out as pronptly as we can. But |
just can't predict right now exactly when that will be.
Having said that, is there anything el se that

counsel wants to take up with the panel before we
decl are the proceedi ngs cl osed?
MR. THORNE: No. Just a thank you again for
doi ng this.
MR. LeVEE: Nothing from | CANN. Thank you.
ARBI TRATOR MATZ: Let nme echo Judge Bonner's
pl audits for the I awers and not just the advocates who

spoke to us directly, but for their teans and their
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clients, who you' ve done a really comendable job in

carrying out your responsibilities.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: Concur.

ARBI TRATOR O BRIEN. It's a great hearing.

And al so to Jones Day, thank you for hosting us,

the food, and the -- they got excellent staff here. The

receptionist, everyone's been super at Jones Day. So

t hank you for hosting us and your opponents here with

style, so we appreciate that.

ARBI TRATOR BONNER: W th that, this hearing of

the IRP is closed.
Thank you all.
(Wher eupon the proceedi ngs was concl uded

at 4:18 p.m)
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I, the undersigned, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the State of California, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken
before me at the time and place herein set forth; that a
record of the proceedings was made by me using machine
shorthand which was thereafter transcribed under my
direction; further, that the foregoing is an accurate
transcription thereof.

I further certify that I am not financially
interested in the action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have this date subscribed

my name.

Dated: 5/9/17

MELISSA M. VILLAGRAN

CSR No. 12543 RPR

Page 459

Veritext Legal Solutions
877-955-3855






